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O’Connor Davies Munns & Dobbins, llp

ACCOUNTAMES ANMD COMSULTAMNTS

Independent Auditors’ Repori

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the
City Council of the Cily of Newburgh, New York:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Newburgh, New
York as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's
management. Qur responsibilily is to express opinions on these basic financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards,
issued by the Compiroiler General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Cily's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test hasis, evidence supperting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We helieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As more fully disclosed in Note 1, B, the financial statementis referred to above do not include financial data
of the Industrial Development Agency or the Local Development Corporation, which should be included in
order to conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America. The effect
on the revenues, expenses, net assets, assets and liabilities is not known, since the financial statements
are not available.

In our opinion, except for the effects on the financiai statements of the omissions described in the
preceding paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Newburgh, New York as of December 31, 2010
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof, for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 Tel: 914-381-8900 Fax: 914-381-8910
www.ODMD.com




In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 24, 2011
on our consideration of the City of Newburgh, New York’s internal control over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of faws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's
Discussion and Analysis, the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and Actual — General and Community Development Funds and the Schedule of Funding Progress
~ Other Post Employment Benefits be presented to supplement the basic financiai statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opintion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Newburgh, New York's basic financial statements as a whole. The combining and
individual fund financial statements and schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements
and schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconcifing such information directly to the underilying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

O lorwmw Dasiio /fummo § Dobboyno, JHP

O’Connor Davies Munns & Dobhins, LLP
June 24, 2011



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Newburgh, we offer readers of these financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Newburgh for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2010. Please read it in conjunction with the Cily financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at December 31, 2010 by $33.9 million {net
assets). However, the net assets at the end of 2010 include a negative $22.2 million of
unrestricted net assets to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The City's total net assets decreased $820,000 as a result of this year's operations. This
compares with 2009 as follows:

2010 2009 % Increase
Total Expenses $ 59,708,414 $ 65,704,735 (9.1%)
Total Revenues 58.887.980 47.562.432 23.8%

Decrease in Net Assets $ 820434 § 18,142,303 (95.5%)

Incurred by:
Governmental Activities  $ 2,752,417 $ 16,708,790 (116.5%)
Business-type Activities (1,931,983) 1,435,513  234.6%

s The Sanitation operations previously included in Governmental Activities were created as a new
Business-type program as of January 1, 2010.

+ The General Fund reporis an operating loss this year of $4.8 milion. The main cause of this
was that 2010 adopted budget contemplated expenditures exceeding revenues by $5.5 million
to be funded from fund balance. However, the unreserved fund balance at the end of 2000 was
a negative $1.4 million.

+ The City's total short-term ouistanding obligations increased by $11.5 million (41.2%) to $39.4
million during 2010. This increase was principally due to the issuance of $12.0 million of Deficit
Financing Notes. The City's total long-term obligations increased from $61.2 million to $66.6
million. This increase is principaily due to an increase in Other Post Employment Benefits by
$6.6 million in 2010.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements.
The City’s financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Governmeni-wide financial statements. These Statements are designed to provide readers with a
broad long-term overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.



The statement of net assefs presents information on all of the Cily’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the fwo reported as nef assefs. Qver time, increases or decreases in net assets
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Cily's net assets are changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assels are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in either positive or negative cash
flows in future fiscal years (e.g., uncollected taxes and unearned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental aclivifies) from other functions that
are intended fo recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and changes
(business activities). The government activities of the City include general government, police, fire,
fransportation, highways and streels, economic development, and culture and recreation. The
business-type activities of the City include water, sewer and sanitation operations. The water, sewer
and sanitation operations function for all practical purposes as a department of the City and therefore
have been included as an integral part of the primary government.

+ The governmeni-wide financial statements include only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but excludes two legally separate entities for which the City is financially
accountable. Financial information for these component units, if available, would be reporied
separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself. For 2010
and 2009, two component units have been excluded because financial statements were not
available in fime for inclusion in this report. The operations of the Local Development
Corporation have ceased and State legislation has been introduced to dissoive the Corporation.

The government-wide financial statements can be found immediately following the MD&A.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activilies or objectives. The City, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All the Funds of the Cily can be divided into three categories:
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reporied as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-ferm
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available
at the end of the year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long term impact of the government’s near-term financiai
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues and expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.



The City maintains five individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds baiance sheet and In the governmental funds staterment of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the General, Capital and Community Development funds, ail of which
are considered to be maijor funds. Data for the other iwo governmental funds are combined into a
single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this repoit.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement
has been provided for the General fund o demonstrate compliance with this budget. The City also
adopts an annual appropriation budget for the Community Development Fund based on the approved
grant award from the U.S Department of housing and Urban Renewal.

The financial statements for the governmental funds can be found immediately following the
government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains Enterprise funds that are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses
enterprise funds to account for its water, sewer and sanitation operations.

Proprietary funds present the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the
water, sewer, and sanitation operations, all of which are considered major funds of the City.,

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found immediately following the fund financial
siatements.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the City. Fiduciary funds are nof reflected in the government-wide financial statements because
the resources of those funds are not available to support the City's own programs. The accounting
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes fo the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential te a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information. This section provides certain required supplementary
information concerning the City. Required Supplementary information can be found immediately
following the fund financiai statements.

Combining and Individual Fund Financial Staternents and Schedules. The financial statements for
the major governmental funds showing comparison of 2010 to 2009 financial data can be found
immediately following the combining statements. The combining statements referred to earlier in
connection with non-major governmental funds are also presented in this section.

The individual fund financial statements tell how these services were financed in the short-term as well
what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City operations in more
detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City's most significant
funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which the City acts
solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside the government.

Statistical Section. This section is included to present certain historic financial and operating data
regarding the City. Ten tables of data compiled by various City depariments are presented following
the Financial Section of this report,



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. The City’s assets exceeded liabilities by $33.9 million at the end of 2010, compared to $34.7
million at the end of 2009.

By far the largest portion of the City's $33.9 million net assets reflects its investiment of $44.2 million in
fixed assets (e.g., fand, buildings, machinery and equipment) less related debt used to acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

An additional portion of the City's net assets $3.4 million represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. This includes revenues received restricted for specific
purposes such as grants or capital projects.

The remaining unrestricted net assets ($22.2) million represents a deficit, thus is unavailable to be used
to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. This deficit is net of a positive $8.3
million from Business-type activities and a negative of ($30.5} million from Governmental Activities.

Net Assets
(% in millions)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total City
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Current and other assets $ 334 $ 396 $ 170 $ 136 $ 504 $ 532
Capital Assets 54.6 45.3 44.4 44.2 99.0 89.5

Total Assels 88.0 84.9 61.4 57.8 149.4 142.7
Long-term debt obligations 51.2 45.8 15.5 165.4 66.7 61.2
Short-term debt obligations 31.9 22.9 7.6 5.0 39.5 27.9
Other Liabilities 7.9 16.4 1.5 2.5 9.4 18.9

Total Liabilities 91.0 85.1 24.6 22.9 115.6 108.0
Net Assets:

Investment in capiial assets,

Net of debt 24.1 15.2 28.5 29.0 52.6 442
Restricted 3.4 2.2 - 2.5 3.4 47
Unrestricted (deficit) (30.5) (17.6) 8.3 3.4 (22.2) {14.2)

Total Net Assets $ (30) $ (©2) $ 368 $ 348 § 338 $ 347




The following schedule shows the comparisen of 2010 versus 2009 Changes in Net Assets

Changes in Netf Assets
{$ in millions)

Governmental Business-iype
Activities Activities Total City
2010 2008 2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenues:
Program Revenues;
Charges for services $ 23 $ 54 $ 131 $ 78 154 % 132
Operating grants and contributions 5.9 6.1 - - 5.9 6.1
Capital grants and contributions 8.1 0.5 - - 8.1 0.5
General Revenues:
Property taxes 128 10.8 - - 12.8 16.8
Other tax items 1.8 1.7 - - 1.8 1.7
Non-property taxes 10.0 9.8 - - 10.0 9.8
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs 49 5.1 - - 4.9 5.1
Cther (0.4} 0.3 0.5 - 0.1 0.3
Total revenues 45.2 39.7 13.6 7.8 58.8 47.6
Expenses:
General government 6.0 10.5 - - 6.0 10.5
Public Safety 33.1 335 - - 331 33.5
Transportation 3.5 3.0 - - 3.5 3.0
Economic opportunity
and development 0.6 0.1 - - 0.6 0.1
Culture and recreation 1.9 33 - - 1.8 3.3
Home and community
services 0.5 4.5 - - 0.5 4.5
Interest on debt 2.4 1.5 - - 24 1.5
Water - - 4.4 5.0 4.4 5.0
Sewer - - 4.6 4.2 4.6 4.2
Sanitation - - 2.7 - 2.7 -
Total sxpenses 48.0 56.4 11.7 9.2 59.7 65.6
Change in Net Assets:
Current year {2.8) {(18.7) 1.9 (1.4) (0.9) (18.1)
Beginning of year (0.2} 15.1 34.9 36.3 347 51.4
Prior year adjustment - 1.4 - - - 1.4
End of year $ (3.0) $ (02 $ 368 3 349 338 §$ 847

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-

related requirements



Governmental funds.

The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measurement of a
government'’s net resources available for spending at the end of the year.

As of the end of 2010, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balance deficit of
$9.1 million, an decrease of $6.1 million in comparison with the prior year. The total includes $12.3
miilion negative unreserved fund balance. The remainder of the fund balance ($3.2) million is reserved
to indicate that it is not available for new spending hecause it has already been committed 1) to
liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior year, 2) to pay general liability and worker's
compensation claims and debt service, and 3} for a variety of other restricted purposes.

The General Fund is the chief operaiing fund of the City. The City's General Fund total fund balance
decreased by $4.8 million ending 2010 year with a total accumulated fund balance deficit of $3.2
million. Key factors in the decrease was the use of $5.5 million of fund balance budgeted to be used in
the 2010 adopted budget. Key variances are set forth in Note 3 o the financial statements

As part of the $3.2 million deficit at the end of 2010, the unreserved fund balance was a deficit of $6.1
million. During 2010 NYS enacted the Newburgh Fiscal Recovery Act to permit the City to issue up to
$15 million of deficit financing bonds for a term not to exceed 15 years to eliminate the City's
accumulated fund balance deficits through December 31, 2010. in August 2010, the City issued $12
million of Deficit notes to finance the projected accumulated deficit at December 31, 2010. The final
amount of bonds the City can issue to finance this accumulated deficit will be certified by the Office of
the State Comptroller following the issuance of this report.

The legislation also requires beginning in 2011 that alt City property tax revenues be deposited into a
State maintained bank account to ensure payment of the City’s general obligation indebtedness. The
portion thereof determined by the Office of the State Compiroller not needed to ensure payment of debt
service principal and interest payments as due is returned to the City. At December 31, 2010, the State
held $0.5 milfion of City funds in its account.

This legislation also provides for State Compfroller review and approval of future budgets and debt
issuances by the City as long as the deficit bonds are outstanding. The legislation also requires the City
to develop and maintain a four year financial plan as long as the deficit honds are cuistanding for how it
will close the growing shortage of revenues to cover expenditures.

The Capital Projects Fund has a tofal negative fund balance of $8.2 million, which will need to be
financed by the City through future debt issues. When bonds are issued to replace the bond
anticipation notes {BANs) outstanding, this deficit shouid be substantiaily siiminated.

The Community Development Fund has a total fund balance of $2.9 miliion ali of which is reserved for
future use as permitted by U.S Depariment of Housing and Urban Renewal grant provisions.

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the water fund at the end of 2010 amounted to $0.8 million compared to $1.7
million deficit at the end of 2009. The sewer fund amounted to a positive $7.3 million at the end of 2010
compared to $5.1 million at the end of 2009. The new sanitation fund ended 2010 with a positive fund



halance of $0.2 million. The total increase in net assets for these funds was $1.9 million. Other factors
concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City's
business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During 2010 there was a $655,000 increase in appropriations between the original adopted budget of
$43.1 million and the final amended budget. The major component of that increase was $3.4 million
supplemental appropriation for debt service and a decrease of ($2.5) million for Home & Community
Services.

A detail comparison of revenues and expenditures compared to budget is included in the individual fund
financial statement section of this report.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for the government and business-type activities
as of December 31, 2010, amounts to $99.0 million {net of accumulated depreciation). This investment
in capital assets includes land buildings, improvements, other than huildings, machinery and equipment,
and infrastructure such as roads, bridges, and water and sewer lines. The tofal increase in the City’s
investment in capital assets for 2010 was 0.6 percent {a 20.5 percent increase for governmental
aclivities and a .45 percent increase for business-type activities)

Capital Assets at Year-end
{Net of Depreciation, in Millions)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2010 2008 2010 2009 2010 2009

Land $ 44 $ 26 $ 103 $ 103 $ 147 $ 129
Buildings 26.4 26.1 1.1 1.1 27.5 272
improvements, other
than buildings 0.6 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.7 0.4
Machinery & Equipment 2.2 2.6 1.3 1.5 35 4.1
infrastructure 14.1 13.2 22.0 20.8 36.1 34.0
Construction-in-progress 8.9 0.6 9.6 10.3 16.5 10.9
Total $ 5646 $ 453 § 444 §$ 442 $ 990 §$ 895

Major capital asset event during 2010 was ihe following:

+ Robinson Avenue Reconstruction Project (still in progress)
s ERP - Provan Project

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in the footnotes to the financial
statements



Debt administration. Total outstanding obligations at the end of 2010 totaled $116.1 million compared
to $89.3 million at the end of 2008.

At the end of 2010, the City had generai obligation bonds, bond anticipation, tax anticipation and deficit
financing notes and Environmental Facilities loans outstanding totaling $64.2 million backed by the full
faith and credit of the City. The rest of the City's debt represents other unsecured obligations.

Qutstanding Obligations

($ in Millions)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
SHORT-TERM
Bond anticipation notes $ 267 $ 173 $ 786 $ 5650 $ 343 % 223
Tax anticipation notes 5.2 5.6 - - 5.2 586
LONG-TERM
General obligation bonds 19.9 20.9 5.4 5.8 253 26.7
Loans 1.3 1.6 7.9 8.2 9.2 9.8
Capital leases 0.1 0.1 - - 0.1 0.1
Energy performance contract 1.5 1.6 - - 15 1.6
Self-Insurance claims and
tax certiorari settiements 38 3.8 - - 3.8 38
Compensated absences 386 36 0.4 0.4 4.0 4.0
Other post employment benefits 20.9 14.3 1.8 1.1 22.7 15.4
Total obligations $ 830 % 688 $ 231 $ 205 s 1061 B 89.3

The City's total outstanding obligations increased by $16.8 million (19%) during 2010. The issuance of
the deficit financing notes and the other post employment benefits accounted for all of this increase.

State statues limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to seven
percent of the total assessed valuation of property in the City. The current debt limitation margin for the
City is $83.1 million, which is significantly in excess of the City's outstanding general obligation debt
subject to the limitation.

The City adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No.
45 beginning 2008, resulting in a cumulative liability at the end of 2010 of $22.7 miilion for other post
employment benefits (OPEB). The City has no current plans to begin funding this obligation. Without a
funding plan is place, this lability will grow each year eventually eliminating the total net assets as
reported on the City-wide Statement of Net Assets. The City's total OPEB unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is $115 million at December 31, 2010 compared to $117 million at the end of 2009. Further
details regarding OPEB are included in Note 10 fo the financial statements.

Additional information on all the City's debt obfigations can be found in the footnotes to the financial
statements.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Cily's taxable property at 100% of assessed valuation is decreasing. The 2010 property tax levy
was $5.6 million {42.4%}) higher than in 2009

The City’s revenue base is contracting and increasing cost for labor, materials and suppliss are putting
a strain on the City's ability to finance City services. Revenues are generated in part from federal and
state aid provided to the City. In 2010 intergovernmental transfers {including State Aid and State and
federal grants) comprised 29.3 percent of the Cify's revenues. Given the financial stress heing
experienced by both the Federal and State governments, there can be no assurance that this aid will
continue or that it will be available in any particular amounis. The City appropriated $5.5 million to
balance its 2010 general fund budget and ended the year with a deficit of $6.1 milfion.

The City has developed a communily development plan covering years 2010 through 2014 in
compliance with requirements of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Renewal. Within that plan
it states the City has experienced substantial flight of industry and commerce into the surrounding
suburban towns and into the Stewart Airport industrial/icommercial zone which is located outside the
City. Disinvestment in the City’s core and neighborhoods over a generation has taken a visible toll, with
high levels of vacancy and disrepair on the major commercial sireets as well as in residential
neighborhoods. The City’s unemployment rate of 10.1% {not seasonally adjusied) in December 2010
exceeded that of the City's Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) (7.6%), Orange Countly (7.8%) and New
York State {8.0%). Within City households, approximately 70% are non-owner occupied. The City's
infrastructure is aging, though limited improvements and repairs are made with City funds and with
federal and state grant funds when made available.

The Newburgh Fiscal Recovery Act requires the City Manager to prepare, along with each annual
proposed budget, a three-year financial plan covering the next succeeding fiscal year and the two
fiscal years thereafter, which would at a minimum confain: projected employment levels; projected
annual expenditures; reserve fund amounts; estimated annual revenues; and the proposed use of
onetime revenue sources. In addition, the financial plan would identify actions necessary to achieve
and maintain long-term fiscal stability, including, but not limited to, improved management practices,
initiatives to minimize or reduce operating expenses, and polential shared services agreementis with
other municipalities, The Cily Manager is required {o update the financial plan consistent with the
adopted budget and quarterly budget reporis.

In December 2010, the City Manager submitted the first required report that projected budgets for 2012
and 2013. The projected budgets were based on the assumption the City would be able to limit growth
in all expenditure categories except for employee health benefits that are projected to increase ten
percent each year, increases in NYS refirement system rates projected to increase at least ten percent
each year and debt service that will increase due to payments on the deficit financing notes and
required principal payments on the bond anticipation notes outstanding. These factors alone were
projected to resuit in a twenty-eight and eleven percent increase in the property tax levy in 2012 and
2013 respectively.

in April 2011, the City Manager submitted the first quarter 2011 multiyear financial plan. This plan took
into consideration the potential of new State legislation being enacted that would limit the increase in
the annual tax levy to two percent or the increase in the inflation rate as determined by the State
Compfroller. With this limitation, the maximum the tax levy could increase would be $376,000,
$384,000 and $391,000, in 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively. Given the two percent limitation, the
updated projected annual budget deficits for those three years was $0.9, $1.5 and $2.2 miilion,
respectively. The City is currently negotiating with three City unions whose contracts have expired with
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the goal to achieve significant savings to eliminate the above deficits. Alternatively, the City couid elect
to further reduce personnel to achieve salary and benefit savings to sliminate the projected deficits.

These plans and future quarterly updates to the multi-year plans can be found on the City's website:
htip:/fwwcityof newburgh-ny.gov.

The City manager plans to present its 2012 budget in September 2012. The 2012 budget is due for
final adoption in November 2012.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and individual investors
and creditors with a general overview of the City's finances and to show the City’s accountability for the
money it received. If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information,
contact the City Comptroller's Office, City of Newburgh, 83 Broadway, City of Newburgh, New York
12550.
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Receivables:
Taxes, net
Accounts, net
Dua from other governments, net
Loans, net
Due from component unit
Prepald expansas
Intemmal balances
Capital assets {net of accumulated
depreciation):
Land
Buildings
improvements cther than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Construction-in-progress

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounls payable

Retainages payable

Aconued intereat payable

BDue to component unit

Bue to other governments
Bue o schoc! districts

Bond anticipation noles payable
Tax anticipation notes payable
Overpayments

Unearned revenues

" Non-current liahilities:

Due within one year:
Bonds payable
Loans payable
Capital leases payable
Energy performance contract payahle
Claims payable
Compensated absences
Due in mors than one year:
Bonds payable
Leans payable
Capital leases payable
Energy performance contract payable .
Claims payable
Compensated absences
Other post employment benefit obligations payable

Total Ligbilities

NET ASSETS (DEFICITS)
Invested in capital assels,

net of related debt
Restricted for:

Special Revenue Funds;
Community Development
Special Purpose

Debt Service

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets (Deficits)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Governmental Buslness-type

Activitles Activities Total
$ 20,795,443 $ 9,400,650 $ 30,186,083
3,626,652 - 3,626,652
1,167,714 5,088,042 8,265,763
7,772,100 1,042,426 8,814,626
562,427 - 562,427
207,329 - 207,328
651,984 76,828 738,810
{1,328,523) 1,328,523 -
4,421,627 10,249,642 14,671,288
26,352,832 1,113,378 27,468,210
631,554 125,258 756,812
2,197,310 1,384,222 3,581,632
14,093,659 21,982,413 36,076,072
6,805,132 9,608,476 16,513,608
88,067,240 61,399,863 149,467,103
3,983,762 828,155 4,811,917
289,793 - 289,793
649,338 100,602 749,940
1,057,003 - 1,057,003
373,065 - 373,055
919,741 - 919,741
26,723,333 7,603,065 34,326,398
8,171,224 - 5,171,224
161,851 - 161,851
542,102 563,890 1,105,992
1,043,911 346,090 1,390,001
310,000 321,857 631,657
44,760 - 44,760
90,179 - 90,179
480,404 - 490,404
366,000 40,500 406,500
18,862,689 5,067,310 23,920,999
985,000 7,685,778 8,680,778
89,161 . 89,161
1,399,858 - 1,399,868
3,261,637 - 3,261,637
3,289,768 365,150 3,684,918
20,807,927 1,758,389 22,666,316
91,022,508 24,580,586 116,603,092
24,167,924 28,538,778 62,706,702
3,201,088 - 3,291,088
35,354 - 35,354
806,920 - 80,920
(30,540,552} 8,280,499 (22,260,053}
$ (29552668} & 36819277 $ 33,864,011




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grantis and Grants and
Functions/ Programs Expenses Services Contributions Confributions
Governmental actlvitles:
General government support 3 6,052,146 1,027,503 § 565,865 -
Public safety 33,135,907 965,015 1,011,747 8,422
Transportation 3,524,190 42,285 1,850,533 8,318,194
Economic opportunity and
development 608,436 - - -
Culture and recreation 1,867,062 103,358 842197 292
Home and community
services 465,023 154,504 1,673,081 1,332,235
Interest 2,387,374 - - 403,083
Total Governmental Actlivities 48,038,138 2,292,665 5,843,423 8,062,208
Business-type activities:
Water Fund 4,357,955 5,216,855 - -
Sewer Fund 4,623,118 5,436,082 - .
Sanitation Fund 2,689,203 2,482,180 - -
Total Business-type Activilies 11,670,276 13,135,097 - -
Total $ 59,708414 § 15427762 % 5,943,423 8,062,206

General Revenues:
Real property taxes
Other tax items:
Gain on sate of tax acquired property
Payments in lieu of taxes
Interest and penalties on real property taxes
Non-property taxes:
Non-property tax distribution from County
Utllitles gross receipls taxes
Franchise fees
Unresiricted use of money and property
Unrestricted State aid
Miscellaneous
Insurance recoveries
Transfers

Total General Revenues
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets (Deficits} - Beginning of Year

et Assets (Deficils} - End of Year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Actlvities Activitiss Total

$ (4,458,778) $ - (4,458,778)
{81,150,723) - {31,150,723)
4,686,822 - 4,686,822
(606,436) - (606,436)
(921,215) - (921,215)
2,694,797 - 2,694,797
{1,984,311) - {1,984,311)
(31,739,844) - {31,739,844)

- 858,000 868,900

- 812,944 812,944
- {207,023) (207,023)

- 1,464,821 1,464,821
{31,739,844) 1,464,821 {30,275,023)
12,583,902 - 12,683,902
725,608 - 726,608
265,361 - 265,361
812,377 - 812,377
B,423,278 - 8,423,278
1,345,965 - 1,345,965
270,088 - 270,086
27,454 90,208 117,662
4,732,975 - 4,732,976
115,780 - 115,780
61,506 - 61,596
{376,954) 376,954 -
28,987,427 467,162 29,454,589
{2,7562,417) 1,931,683 (820,434)
(202,849) 34,887,294 34,684,445

$ (2,956,266) $ 38,819,277 33,864,011
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Capital Community
General Projects Daveiopment
ASSETS
Cash and Equivalents $ 11,018294 ¢ 6891736 $ 2,417,038
Taxes Receivable, net 3,626,652 . - -
Other Receivables: .
Accounts, net 1,167,714 - -
Due from other governments, net 3,258,444 2,677,129 1,154,672
Loans, net - - 562,427
Due from compcnent unit - - 207,329
Due from other funds 3,200,175 - 311,765
7,626,333 2,677,129 2,236,493
Prepaid Expenditures 650,864 ' - 3,978
Total Assets $ 22922143 $ 9568865 $ 4,657,509
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Liabilities: _
Accounts payable $ 2192793 % 1,517,325 § 18,514
Retainages payable - 289,793 -
Due to component unit 1,067,003 - -
Due fo other governments 135,452 - -
Pue to school districts 919,741 - -
Bond anticipation notes payable 14,346,000 12,377,333 -
Tax anticipation notes payable 5,171,224 - -
Due to other funds - 4,288,036 -
Overpayments , 161,851 - -
Deferred tax reventes 1,227,709 - -
Deferred revenues 916,075 - 1,698,613
Total Liabilities 26,127,848 18,472 487 1,717,127
Fund Balances {Deficits):
Reserved for encumbrances 34,874 - -
Reserved for prepaid expenditures 650,864 - 3,978
Reserved for long-term receivables 2,135,944 - 207,329
Reserved for trusts - - -
Reserved for debt service 80,920 - -
Unreserved, reported in:
General Fund (6,118,307) - -
Special Revenue Funds - - 2,729,075
Capital Projects Fund - (8,903,622} -
Total Fund Balances (Deficits) (3,205,705) (8,903,622) 2,940,382
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances (Deficits) $ 22022143 $ 9568865 $ 4,657,500

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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Total

Cther Governmental
Governmental Funds
$§ 468375 $ 20,795,443
- 3,626,652
- 1,167,714
681,555 7,772,100
- 562,427
- 207,329
8,213 3,620,163
689,768 13,229,723
7,142 £61,984
$ 1,165,285 $ 38,313,802
$ 255,130 § 3,983,762
- 289,793
- 1,057,003
237,603 373,055
- 918,741
- 26,723,333
- 5,171,224
560,640 4,848,676
- 161,851
- 1,227,709
76,558 2,691,246
1,129,931 47 447,393
- 34,874
7,142 661,984
- 2,343,273
35,354 35,354
- 90,920
- (6,118,307)
(7,142} 2,721,933
- (8,003,622)
35,354 (9,133,591
$ 1,165285 $ 38,313,802
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO

THE GOVERNMENT - WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

December 31, 2010

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net
Assets are Different Because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefors, are not reported in the funds,

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.
Real property {axes
Deferred revenues
Long-term loans

Long-term liabilities that are not due and payable in the current
period are not reported in the funds.
Accrued interest payable
Bonds payable
Loans payabie
Capital leases payable
Energy performance contract payable
Claims payable
Compensated absences
Other post employment benefit obligations payable

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The notes {o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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(9,133,591)

54,602,114

4,227,709
450,531
1,698,613

3,376,853

(649,338)
(19,808,600)
(1,305,000)
(133,921)
(1,490,047)
(3,752,041)
(3,655,768)
(20,907,927)

(51,800,642)

{2,955,266)




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Capital Community
General Projects Development
REVENUES
Real property taxes $ 12592214 § - 3 -
Other tax items 1,803,346 - -
Non-property taxes 10,039,328 - -
Departmental income 1,828,682 - 82,954
Intragovernmental charges 1,242,675 - -
Intergovernmental charges 537,451 - -
Use of money and property 90,364 191,591 9,300
Licenses and permits 286,144 - -
Fines and forfeitures 388,553 - -
State aid 5,516,662 1,373,372 -
Federal aid 37,118 3,702,494 481,751
Miscellaneous 239,974 202 493 288
Total Revenues 34,602,511 5,267,749 1,067,293
EXPENDITURES
Current: _
General government support 5,777,928 - -
Public safety 23,328,215 - -
Transporiation 2,579,873 - -
Economic opportunity
and development 606,867 - -
Culture and recreation 1,085,698 - -
Home and community services 325,360 - 506,231
Empiloyee benefits 1,973,027 - -
Debt service:
Principal 1,152,871 - 310,000
Interest 2,068,052 - 108,088
Capiltal outlay - 7,132,153 -
Total Expenditures 38,877,889 7,132,153 924,318

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expendifures (4,275,378) {1,864,404) 142,974

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Capital leage Issued - 133,011 -
Insurance recoveries 61,596 - -
Premiums on obligations 211,472 - -
Transfers in 90,920 338,751 -
Transfers out (916,065) - -
Total Other Financlng Sources {Uses) (552,077) 471,762 -
Net Change in Fund Balances {4,827,455) {1,392,642) 142,974
Fund Balances (Deficlts) -
Beginning of Year 1,621,750 (7,510,980} 2,797 408
Fund Balances (Deflcits) -
End of Year $ {3,205705) § (8,903,622) $ 2,940,382

The notes fo the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Total

Other Governmental
Governmental Funds

$ - 3 12,582,214

- 1,803,346

- 10,039,328

- 1,911,636

- 1,242,675

- 537 451

738 291,993

- 286,144

- 388,553

328,973 7,217,007

1,647,667 5,868,930

37,084 770,638

2,012,362 42.949,915

- 5,777,928

990,117 24,318,332

288,139 2,868,012

- 606,867

881,542 1,847,238

51,965 883,556

- 1,873,027

- 1,462,871

- 2,176,140

- 7,132,153

2,211,763 49,146,124
(199,401) (6,196,209)

- 133,011

- 61,586

- 211,472

200,360 630,031
(80,920) {1,006,985)

109,440 29,125
(89,961) (8,167,084)
125,315 {2,866,507)

3 35354 &  (9.133.5¢1)




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

DECEMBER 31, 2010

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are Different Because:

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds . $  (6,167,084)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital cutlay excesded
depreciation expense In the current period. This amount may be less than the total capital
outlay since capital outlay includes amounts that are under the capitalization threshold.

Capital ouitay expenditures ) 10,927,641
Depreciation expense {1,662,678)
9,265,063

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Real property taxes (8,312)

Departmental income ‘ 612,012

Sales of real property subject to mortgage and other payment provisions (938,445)
(334,745)

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but Issuing
debt increases long-term llabilitles in the statement of net assets. Repayment of debt
principal Is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term labilifies in the statement of net assets,

Principal paid on bonds 1,012,608
Principal paid on loans 310,000
Capital lease issued (133,011)
Principal paid on capital leases 53,830
Principal paid on energy performance contract 86,433

1,329,860

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds,

Accrued interest (211,234)

Claims 7,128
Compensated absences {58,246)
Other post employment benefit obligations : (6,593,169)
(6,845,511)

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activitles $  (2,752417)

The notes to the financial statements are an integrat part of this statement.
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2010
Water Sewer Sanitation
Fund Fund Fund Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and equivalents 3 2252218 % 6,525,262 8 623,168 § 9,400,650
Recelvables:
Accounts 2,141,490 2,038,854 907,705 5,088,049
Due fror other governments 300,000 742,426 - 1,042,426
Due from other funds 424,881 1,830,105 - 2,254,086
Prepald expenses 34,910 12,588 29,328 76,826
Total Current Assels 5,153,600 11,148,235 1,560,202 17,862,037
Nonctrrent Assels:
Capital assets:
Land 7,248,449 3,001,193 - 16,249,842
Construction-in-progress 6,159,001 3,449,385 - 9,608,476
Bulldings and improvements 935,688 451,554 - 1,387,242
Improvemenits other than buildings 404,164 11,558 - 415,722
Machinery and equipment 1,890,671 778,235 566,062 3,234,868
Infrastructure 15,161,219 24,955,408 - 40,118,717
31,799,182 32,647,423 566,082 65,012,667
Less - Accumulated depreciation {9.633.271) (10,377,921} (538,086} {20,549,278)
Total Capitat Assets, net of accumulated depreciation 22,165,811 22,269,502 V 27,976 44,463,389
Total Assets 27,319411 - 33,418,737 1,588,178 62,326,326
LIABILITIES
Current Liabllitles:
Accounts payable 180,623 621,937 116,185 828,185
Accrued Interest payable 87,601 13,011 - 100,602
Due to other funds ) - - 926,463 026,463
Deferred revenues - 563,800 - 563,890
Bond anticipation notes payable 2,276,229 5,326,836 - 7,603,065
Gurrent maturities of bonds payable 230,698 115,304 - 346,090
Current maturities of loans payable 321,657 - - 321,857
Cureent portion of compensated absences 25,000 5,800 8,700 40,500
Total Current Liabilities 3,131,196 6,547 868 1,051,358 10,730,422
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds payable, less current maturities 4,466,304 601,006 - 5,067,310
Loans payable, less current maturities 7,585,778 - - 7,685,778
Compensated absences, less current portion 225237 61,231 78,6882 365,150
Other post employment benefit obligations payable 1,173,092 324 843 260,454 1,758,389
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 13,450,411 987,080 338,136 14,776,627
Total Liabilities 16,581,607 7,534,948 1,390,494 25,507,048
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 9,919,869 18,580,933 27,976 28,538,778
Unrestricted 817,835 7,292,856 169,708 8,280,499
Total Net Assets $ 10,737,804 $ 25883788 § 197,684 $ 36,819,277

The notes {o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Operating Revenues
Metered sales
Fees
Penally income
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personal services
Depreciation
Fees for services
Supplies
Utllities
Insurance
Contractual
Employee benefits

Total Operating Expenses
Income (Loss} from Operations

Non-Operating Revenues {Expenses)
State aid
Interest Income
Interest expenss

Total Non-Operating Revenues {Expenses)

Change in Net Assets before
Transfers

Transfers
Transfers In
Transfers out
Total Transfers
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Net Assets - End of Year

Water Sewer Sanitation
Fund Fund Fund Totals
$ 5078499 $ 5,001,496 - § 10,169,995
- - 2,423,592 2423,582
97,445 91,395 - 188,840
36,483 253,171 58,688 348,242
5,212,427 5,436,082 2,482,180 13,130,669
1,129,183 410,183 940,827 2,480,193
333,208 477 497 11,980 822,893
434,804 676,809 - 1,111,613
305,224 24 430 87,067 418,721
154,001 174,441 - 328,442
346,182 325,818 - 672,000
502,485 2,010,792 787,098 3,300,375
022,179 285,613 862,221 2,070,013
4,127,264 4,386,583 2,689,203 11,202,050
1,085,163 1,050,479 (207,023) 1,928,619
4,428 - - 4,428
3,151 58,304 27,753 90,208
(230,681) (237,535) - (468,226)
(223_.11 2) (178,231) 27,753 {373,590}
862,051 872,248 {179,270) 1,555,029
159,548 . 376,954 536,502
- (158 548) - {158,548)
159,648 (159,548) 376,954 376,954
1,021,599 712,700 197,684 1,931,983
9,716,205 25,171,089 - 34,887,294
$ 10,737,804 $ 25,883,789 197,684 $ 36,818,277

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

23



CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash recelved from metersd salas, penalties and other
Cash received from fees from customars
Cash payments for goods and services
Cash payments to employees
Advances received from other funds

Net Cash Provided by (Used in} Operating Aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

State ald

Due from other funds

Transfers In
Transfers out

Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing

Activitles

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from debt
Principal paid on debt
Interest pald on debt

Net Cash Provided by {(Used in) Capital and Related
Financing Activitles

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest income

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Equivalents
Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year
Cash and Equivalents - End of Year

Reconclliation of Income (Loss) from Operations
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Income {loss) frem operatfons
Adjustments to reconclle loss from operations to
net cash provided by {used in) operating activitles:

Depreciation

Changes [n assets and llabilities:
Accounts recelvable
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Retalnages payable
Due fo other funds
Deferred revenues
Compensated absences
Other post employment bensfit obligations payable

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

The notes io the financlal stalements are an Integral part of this statement,

Water Sewer Sanitation

Fund Fund Fund Tofals
$ 4,649,801 4,087,463 § - 8,737,294
- - 1,574,475 1,574,475
{4,881,374) {3,855,008) {787,298} (9,527,680)
{1,819,103) (660,077) (1,455,212} (3,834,382)
- - §26,463 926,463
{2 050,676) (331,592} 258,428 (2,123,840)
4,428 - - 4,428
1,314,704 5,818,370 - 7,133,074
159,548 - 376,954 536,502
- {159,548} - {159,548)
1,478,680 5,658,822 376,954 7,514,456
(940,881} (145,350) (39,8686) (1,126,197)
2,276,229 315,836 - 2,592,085
(546,620) (115,394) - {662,084)
{235 037) (239,448) - {474,483)
553,621 {184,354) {39,966) 328,301
3,151 58,304 27,753 90,208
(15,224) 5,202,180 623,169 5,810,125
2,267,443 1,323,082 - 3,590,525
$ 2252219 % 6,525,262 623,169 $ 9,400,650
$ 1085163 3 1050478 8§ (207,023) % 1,928,619
333,206 477,497 11,850 822,693
{629,346) {432,100} (807,705} {1,869,161)
§6,720 {211,549} - {t44,829)
(34,763) (12,541) {28,328) {76,632)
(335,601) {476,452} 116,195 {695,858)
(94,381) {157,725} - {252,1G5)
(2,673,933) {673,670} 926,463 (2,421,140)
(90,389) {31,250} - {121,649}
322,658 23,218 87,382 433,268
- 112,601 260,454 372,955
$ {2050676) $ (331,592) 258,428 $ (2,123,840)
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUND
DECEMBER 31, 2010

ASSETS
Cash - Demand deposits
Accounts Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable

Employee Payrolt Deductions
Deposits

Total Liabilities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Noie 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the City of Newburgh, New York {"the City”) conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") as applicable to governments. The following
is a summary of the most significant accounting policies;

A.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with GAAP as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board {"GASB"), the Financial Accounting
Standards Board {*FASB"), and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants {("AICPA”).
Under the auspices of GASB Statement No. 20, the City does not apply FASB pronouncements
issued after Novemher 30, 1989, for proprietary activities, unless the GASB amends its
pronouncements to specifically adopt a FASB pronouncement issued after that date. GASB is the
accepted standard-setling body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles for units of local government.

Financial Reporting Entity

The City was incorporated in 1865 and operates in accordance with its Charter and applicable laws
of the State of New York. The City operates under a Council (5 members)/City Manager form of
government. The City Councit is the legisiative body responsibie for overall operations. A City
Manager serves as chief executive and the City Director of Finance serves as the chief financial
officer. The City provides public safely, fransportation, economic opportunity and development,
culture and recreation, home and communily services and general and administrative support
services to approximately 28,000 residents fiving in a 3.8 square mile area.

This report includes all funds, departments, agencies, boards and commissions, and other
organizational units that are administrated by the City Manager and/or controlled by or dependent
upon the City Council as set forth in the City Charter. The Cily, a primary government, has alsc
considered for inclusion all potential component units for which it may be financially accountable
and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are
such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
GASB Statement No. 14: The Financial Reporting Entily sets forth criteria to be considered in
determining financial accountability.

These criteria include appoiniing voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the
ability of the City to impose its will on the organization; or (2) the potential for the organization to
provide specific financial benefits fo or impose specific financial burdens on the City.

Component Units: The City has identified as its component unils certain legally separate
organizations for which the City is financially accountable or for which a significant relationship with
the City exists such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete.

The Newburgh Community Development Agency (formerly the Newburgh Urban Renewal
Agency) is a body corporate and politic, created under Title 32, Article 15B of the General Municipal
Law of the State of New York. its principal responsibility is to manage the City's receipt and
expenditure of Federal funds received from the U.S. Department of Mousing and Urban Renewal.
Members of the Agency are the members of the City Council. The operations of this entity have
been concluded and State legislation has been introduced io dissolve this Agency
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

The City also has the following two component units that should be included in the City's financial
statements as discretely presented component units, but since current financial statements are not
availabie for these entities their financial activities are not included therein.

The City of Newburgh Industrial Development Agency (“Agency’) is a public benefit
corporation created under Title 2, Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New
York to promote the economic welfare, recreation opporiunities and prosperity of the City’s
inhabitants. Members of the Agency are appointed by the City Council. Agency members have
complete responsibility for management of the Agency and accountability for fiscal matters. The
City is not liable for Agency bonds or notes. The governing board of the Agency serves at the
pleasure of the City Council and therefore the City is considered able to impose its will on the
Agency.

The City of Newburgh Local Development Corporation ("Corporation”) is a not-for-profit
corporation created for the purpose of providing loans fo assist in relieving and reducing
unemployment and promoting and providing for additional and maximum employment in the City.
The governing body consists of the Mayor, the City Manager, two members of the Board of the
Industrial Development Agency and a fifth member chosen by the governing board of the
Corporation. The City is considered able fo impose its will on the Corporation.

The following organizations are located in the City but are not considered component units.
The City does not exercise influence in their management or operations and is not financially
accountable for their actions. Accordingly, their financial statements are not included in the City's
financial statements.

The Newburgh Municipal Housing Authority was established by an act of the New York State
legislature to provide quality and safe housing including managing public housing projects in the
City for low income families and senior citizens under the Federal Housing Act of 1936, as
amended. The Housing Authority was established by an act of the New York State Legisiature
which designated the housing authority board as the governing authority. Five members of the
housing authority board are appointed by the City and two representatives are elected by the
tenants. The Cily exercises no oversight over or has any financial responsibility for housing
authority operations. However the City has provided the housing authority technical and financial
support through its Community Development Program.

The Newburgh Enlarged City School District provides the K-12 educational programs for
children in the City and several surrounding towns. The School District was established by an act of
the New York State Legislature which designated the school board as the governing authority.
Members of the school board are elected directly by the public. The City exercises no oversight
over or has any financial responsibility for school district operations. Pursuant to a State statute,
unpaid school tax levies are relieved and collected by the City. Collection of the unpaid school tax
levies are 100 percent guaranteed by the City.

C. Basic Financial Statements
The basic financial statements include both citywide and fund level statements. The City, as the

primary government, is reported separately from its component units. The citywide statements
report on all of the activities of the City except those that are fiduciary in nature.

27



CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Both the citywide and fund level statements classify activities of the City as either governmental
activities which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, or business type
activities, which are primarily supported by user fees and charges.

The citywide statement of net assets reports all assets and liabilities of the City, including both fong-
ferm assets and long-ferm debt and other obligations. The statement of activities reports the
degree to which direct expenses of Cily functions are offset by program revenues, which include
program specific grants and charges for services provided by a specific function. The net cost of
these programs is funded from general revenues such as taxes, intergovernmental revenue and
interest earnings. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
cilywide financial statements.

The fund level statements report on governmental, proprietary and fiduciary fund activities. Major
individuat funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
level financial statements.

Since the fund level statements for governmental activities are presented using a different
measurement focus and basis of accounting than in the citywide financial statements (as discussed
under Basis of Accounting in this summary of significant accounting poiicies), a reconciliation is
presented on the page following each fund level statement which briefly expiains the adjustments
necessary to convert the fund level statements into the citywide governmental column presentation.

D. Fund Structure

The City’s accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting to ensure
compliance with limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to it. Under
fund accounting, individual funds are established for the purpose of carrying on activities or
attaining objectives in accordance with specific regulations, restrictions or limitations. Each
individual fund is a self-balancing set of accounts recording assets and other financing resources,
together with liabilities and residual equities or balances and changes therein. For financial
statement presentation, funds with similar characteristics are grouped infc generic classifications as
required by GAAP. A brief description of those classifications follows:

Governmental Funds - These funds report fransactions related o resources and used for those
services traditionally provided by a city government. The following are the major governmental
funds used by the City:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilites other than those financed by
proprietary funds. The principal source of financing is from the sale of bonds or bond anticipation
notes.

Community Development Fund - This fund is a Special Revenue Fund established to account for
the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for certain
defined purposes. The Community Development Fund is used to account for projects and
subsidies financed by entitlements from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The City also reports the following non-major governmental funds.

Special Purpose Fund — The Special Purpose Fund is provided to account for assets held by the
City in accordance with the term of a trust agreement.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is provided to account for the accumulation of
resources to be used for the redemption of principal and interest on long-term obligations.

Grant Fund - The Grant Fund is used to account for financial resources received from Federal
and State agencies for specific operations where separate accountability for those funds is a
requirement of the grantor agency.

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds are used to account for enterprise activities of the City that
provide services to the public similar to those found in the private sector, where cost recovery and
the determination of nat income is useful or necessary for sound financial management. The City
has two enterprise fund operations as follows:

Water Fund - Established to account for revenues derived from charges for water consumption and
benefit assessments and the application of such revenues towards related operating expenses
and debt retirement.

Sewer Fund - Established to account for revenues derived from sewer rents and bhenefit
assessments and used for related operating expenses and debt retirement.

Sanitation Fund — Established o account for the fee revenues and expenses for the City refuse
collection services.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee or
custodial capacity on behalf of others as follows:

Agency Funds - Used for resources held by the City in a purely custodial capacity (assets equal
liabilities). Agency funds involve only the receipt, temporary investment and remittance of fiduciary
resources to individuals, private organizations or other governments,

E. Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. The cilywide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are receorded
when a liabilty is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenue in the year which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue when all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider are met.

Governmenial fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basls of accounting. Under this measurement focus
only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating
statements of these funds present increases (i.e. revenues and other financial sources) and
decreases {i.e. expenditures and other financial uses) in fund balance.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to
accrual {i.e. when they become both measurable and avaitable). “Measurable” means the amount
of the transaction can be determined and "Avaiiable” means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to be susceptible to accrual including property taxes, sales faxes, state
shared revenues, intergovernmental revenue, charges for services and investment income.
Generally, the City considers a 60-day availability period for revenue recognition.

Federal grants collected on a reimbursement basis are recognized as revenue when reimbursable
expenditures are made, and the City considers amounts received within one year as available.
Revenues collected on an advance basis, including certain federai grant revenue, to which the City
does not yet have legal entittement, are not recognized as revenue until the relaied commitment
arises.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liabflity Is incurred, except for items that are not
planned io be liguidated with expendable available resources. Exceptions to the general modified
accrual expenditure recognition criteria include principal and interest on long-term obligations,
which are recognized when paid, and payments for compensated absences, claims and other post
employment benefit obligations which are recognized when due.

General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of
long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. When
both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Cily's policy o use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Agency funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Agency funds are custodial
in nature (i.e. assets equal liabilities} and do not measure the results of operations.

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of funds deposited in demand deposit accounts, time deposit
accounts and certificates of deposit with original maturities of less than three months.

The City's overall investment policies are governed by State statutes. The City has adopted its own
written invesiment policy as of January 9, 2006 that provides for the deposit of funds in FDIC
insured commerciai banks or trust companies located within the State. The City is authorized to
use demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit. Permissible
investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Agencies, repurchase agreements and
obligations of New York State or its political subdivisions, and accordingly, the City's policy provides
for no credit risk on investments.

Collateral is required for demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and ceriificates of
deposit at 102% of all deposits not covered by Federal deposit insurance. The City has entered
into custodial agreements with the various banks which hold their deposits. These agreementis
authorize the obligations that may be pledged as collateral. Such obiigations include, among other
instruments, obligations of the United States and its agencies and obligations of the State and iis
municipal and schootl district subdivisions.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be
returned to it. GASB Statement No. 40 directs that deposits be disclosed as exposed to custodial
credit risk if they are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are either
uncollateralized, collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution or coliateralized
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

by securities held by the pledging financial institution’s frust department but not in the City’s name.
The City's aggregate bank balances that were not covered by depository insurance were not
exposed to custodial credit risk at December 31, 2010.

The City was invested only in the above mentioned obligations and, accordingly, was not exposed
to any interest rate or credit risk.

G. Receivables

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible amounts, which are
determined, based on past collection experience and current economic conditions except for certain
long-term receivables which are reported as a reservation of fund balance because they are not
considered a current financial resource available for expenditure. Receivables include:

Taxes Receivable - Real property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on real property and are
levied on January 1% The City is responsible for the collection of its own taxes and for the collection
of County of Orange taxes for taxes levied on property located within the City. In addition, the City
levies on January 1% delinquent water, sewer and sanitation bills. The City also has the
responsibility for conducting judicial in-rem foreclosure proceedings.

The City and County faxes are levied simultaneously, payable in three installments. The first
installment is due February 10", the second installment is due May 5" and the third installment is
due July 7". If an installment is not paid in full by the due date, there is a 5% penalty added.

School District taxes levied for the period July 1% to June 30" are collected by the School District
through March 31% at which time the City guarantees full payment thereof. Delinquent County and
School District taxes are paid to the County and School District, respectively, as collected or prior to
foreclosure. The City is required to pay the School District in full within two years after the return of
the statement of unpaid taxes. The City is only required 1o pay delinquent taxes to the County as
October 30" each year.

COther Receivables - Other receivables include amounts due from other governments and
individuals for services provided by the City. Receivables are recorded and revenues recognized
as earned or as specific program expenditures are incurred. Allowances are recorded when
appropriate.

Loans Receivable - Loans receivable consist of residential and commercial loans made by the City
through the Community Development Program. The loans have various interest rates and
maturities.

H. Interfund Activity

Interfund activity within and among the City's three fund categories (governmental, proprietary and
fiduciary) are classified as reciprocal interfund activity and nonreciprocal interfund activity.

Reciprocal interfund resources which flow between funds with an expectation of repayment are
reported as interfund receivables and payables. Reciprocal interfund resources which flow, without
any expectation of repayment within a reasonable time, are reported as transfers between funds.
Interfund services provided and used are sales and purchases of goods and services between
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funds for a price approximating their external value and are reported as revenues and expenditures
(or expenses) in the funds.

Nonreciprocal interfund activities are flows of assets between funds without an equivalent flow of
assets in return or without a requirement for repayment are reported as transfers in governmental
funds and non-operating revenues and expenses in proprietary funds.

L Inventory

There are no inventory values presented in the balance sheets of the respective funds of the City.
Purchases of inventory items at various locations are recorded as expenditures in the governmental
funds or expenses in the business-type funds at the time of purchase and, potential year-end
balances are deemed not material.

J. Prepaid Expenses/Expenditures

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods, and are recorded
as prepaid items using the consumption method in both the government-wide and fund financial
statements. Prepaid expenses/expenditures consist of costs which have been satisfied prior to the
end of the fiscal year, but represent items which have even provided for in the subsequent year's
budget anfor will benefit such periods. Reported amounts in governmental funds are equally offset
by a reservation of fund balance, in the fund financial statements, which indicates that these
amount do not constitute “available spendable resources” even though they are a component of
current assets.

K. Capital Assets

Capital assets include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure asseis {e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks and similar items). Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market vaiue at the date of donation.

In the case of the initial capitalization of generat infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by
governmental activities), the City chose to include all such items regardless of their acquisition date
or amount. The City was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporiing of these assets
through back trending (i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be
capitalized and used an appropriate price-level index io deflate the cost to the acquisition year or
estimated acquisition year).

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The
cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives is not capitalized.

Capital assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type column in the citywide
financial statements, and in the propristary fund statements.

Land and construction-in-progress are not depreciated. Property, plant and equipment of the City
are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives.

Life
Class in Years
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Buildings 50-75

Improvements other than buildings 15-20

Machinery and equipment 2-15

Infrastructure 15-40
L. Deferred Revenues

Deferred or unearned revenues arise when assets are recognized before revenue recognition
criteria have been satisfied. In government-wide financial statements, unearned revenues consist of
revenue from grants received before the eligibility requirements have heen mel.

. Compensated Absences

City employees may accumulate earned leave benefits (vacation, sick and compensated
absences) at various rates within limits specified in collective bargaining agreements. For all
funds, this liability reflects amounts attributable to employee services already rendered,
cumulative, probable for payment, and reascnably estimated in conformity with GASB Statement

No. 16 Accounting for Compensated Absences.

Compensated absences liabilities are accrued when incurred in the cilywide and proprietary
financial statements. No expenditure is reported in the governmental funds for compensated
absences until the payment is made. No liahility is recorded for non-vesting, accumulated sick
leave benefiis. Compensated absences liabilities are determined based on current year rates of

pay.
N. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-
term obligations are reported as fabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business type
activities or proprietary fund statement of net assets. Each governmental fund that has long-term
obligations is responsible for liquidating the same.

0. Bond Discounts, Premiums and Issuance Costs

In the citywide financial statements and for proprietary funds, bond discount, premium and issuance
cosits are deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over the term of the bond
using the siraight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond discounts, premiums and
issuance cost in the current period. The face amount of the debt issued and any bond premiums
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received,
are reported as Capital Projects Fund expenditures.
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P.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through legislation adopted by
the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of
other governments. Net assets on the Statement of Net Assets includs, invested in capital assets,
net of related debt, restricted for communitly development, special purpose and debt service, The
balance is classified as unrestricted.

Fund Equity - Reserves and Designations

In the fund level statements, reservations of fund balance are established to identify the existence
of assets that have been legally segregated for specific purposes and are therefore not available for
future appropriation or expenditure. Amounts reserved for encumbrances, prepaid expenditures,
long-term receivables, trusts and debt service represent porfions of fund balance which are
required to be segregated in accordance with State law or generally accepted accounting
principles. Dasignations of fund balance equity in governmental funds reflect the City’s plans for
financial resource allocation in a future period. Such plans or intenticns are subject to change and
may never result in expenditures.

Encumbrances

In governmental funds, encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and
other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded In order to reserve applicable
appropriations, is generally employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
General Fupd. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund
balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

tse of Estimates

The praparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures
of contingent assets and liahilities at the date of the financial statements, and reported amounts of
revenues and expendituresfexpenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management
Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the financial

statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, which date is
June 24, 2011,

Note 2 - Budgetary Data

The City presents Budgetary Comparison Schedules for the General and Community Development Funds
in the Required Supplementary Information section of this report. The City's budgetary comparison
reporting and notes thereto contain descriptions of the City's budgetary policies and processes are
included therein.
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A.

Property Tax Limitation

The City is permitted by the Constitution of the State of New York to levy taxes up to 2% of the five
year average full valuation of taxable real estate located within the City, exclusive of the amount
raised for the payment of interest on and redemption of long-term debt. In accordance with this
definition, the maximum limit for the levy for 2010 was $21.014 million, net of exclusions, which
exceeded the actual levy by $7.811 million.

Reductions in Fund Balances and Net Assets

In the General Fund expenditures and other financing uses exceeded revenues and other financing
sources by $4.8 million, reducing General Fund Balance from $1.6 million fo $(3.2) million, and
resulting in an undesignated deficit of $6 million as of December 31, 2010. The adopted 2010
budget anticipated an additional $5.5 million reduction in Fund Balance. State Legislation has been
enacted that will permit the City to issue deficit bonds in an amount not exceeding $15 million to
fund its accumulated deficit through the end of 2010 for a period not exceeding 15 years.

The unreserved and undesignated deficit in the Capital Projects Fund of $8.8 million arises
because of the application of generally accepted accounting principles to the financial reporting of
such funds. The proceeds of bond anticipation notes issued to finance construction of capital
projects are not recognized as an “other financing source”. Liabilities for bond anticipation notes
payable are accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund. Bond anticipation notes are recognized as
revenue only to the extent that they are redeemed. These deficits will be reduced and eliminated as
bond anticipation notes are redeemed from interfund transfers from other governmental funds or
converted to permanent financing.

Both the Water and Sewer Funds ended 2010 with a positive change in Net Assets. The Water
Fund Net Assets were increased by $862,000, resulting in unrestricted net assets of $817,000 as of
December 31, 2010 and the Sewsr Fund Net Asseis were increased by $712,000 million, The
Sanitation Fund ended 2010 with a positive fund balance of $169,000.

General Fund Budget Variances

Actual revenues were below the final amounts budgeted by $480,095. The categories of revenues
that had actual revenues below the final amounts budgeted are as follows:

Original Final Negative

Category

Budget

Budget Actual Variances

Real property taxes
intragovernmental charges
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures

State aid

Federal aid

Miscellanous

Total Negative Vartances

$ 13,203,274
1,787,975
289,060
485,000
5,905,317
899,000
470,050
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$ 13,203,274
1,833,467
289,050
495,000
5,662,873
901,500
474,050

$ 12,592,214
1,242,675
286,144
388,553
5,516,662
37,118
239,974

$  (611,080)
(590,792)
(2,906)
(106,447)
(146,211)
(864,382)

(234,076)
$ (2,555,874)
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The following categories of expenditures in the General Fund exceeded their budgetary provisions
by the amounts indicated:

Original Final Negative
Category Budget Budget Actual Variances
Economic opportunity and
development 3 64,892 $ 64,892 $ 606,867 $ 541,975
Debt Service - Principal - 1,151,676 1,152,871 1,185

The following categories of expenditures in the Community Development Fund exceeded their
budgetary provisions by the amounts indicated:

Criginal Final Negative
Category Budget Budget Actual Variances
Debt Service:
Principal $ - $ - $ 310,000 $ 310,000
Interest - - 108,088 108,088

Note 4 - Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2010 consist of the following:

Carrying
Values
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash on hand $ 4,030
Bank Accounis 30,517,941
Total Cash and Cash equivalents $ 30,521,971

Note 5 - Receivables

Receivables are recorded net of allowance for possible uncollectible amounts:

Trade Accounts 3 1,288,061
Taxes:
City, County and School - Current and overdue 3,836,993
Property acquired for taxes 2,257,663
Water and sewer charges 4,180,344
Sanitation charges 907,705
Loans receivable 733,138
Subtotal 13,203,904
Less: Allowance for uncollectibles (2,759,062)
Net Accounts Receivable $ 10,444,842
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School districts taxes are offset by a liability to the school district which will be paid when the warrants are
required to be satisfied. Taxes receivable are also partially offset by deferred tax revenues of $1,227,709,
which represents the portion of the receivable which will not be collected within the first sixty days of the
subsequent year. Interest expenditures/expenses of $119,5631 were recorded in the fund financial
statements in the General Fund and in the government-wide financial statements as a result of a 1% per
month penally for amounts not paid when due to the school district by the City.

Note 6 - Due From Other Governments

Receivables due from other governments consist of:

2010

United States Federal Government $ 1,154,972
State of New York 4,892,994
County of Orange 2,258,009
Newburgh Housing Authority 459,000
Newburgh School District 129,537
Other 2,775

8,898,287

| ess: Allowance for Uncollectables (83,761)

Total $ 8,814,526

Note 7 - Interfund Transactions

A, Interfund transactions resulting in receivables and payables due between funds are as follows:

Due Due

Funds From To

General $ 3,200,175 $ -

Capital Projects - 4,288,036

Community Development 311,765 -

Non-Major Governmentai 8,213 560,640

Water 424,881 -

Sewer 1,830,105 -

Sanitation - 026,463

$ 5775139 $ 5775139

The above interfund receivables/payables are due to lags between the dates that interfund goods
and services are provided, transactions are recorded in the accounting system and payments are
made.
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B. Transactions resuiting in transfers between funds are summarized as follows:
Transfers Transfers
Fund In Out
General 90,920 % 916,065
Capital Projecis 338,751 -
Non-Major Governmental -
Debt Service - 90,920
Grants 200,360 -
Water 159,548 -
Sewer - 159,548
Sanitation 376,954 -
1,168,533 § 1,166,533

The above transfers from/to were used io move revenues from the fund that statue or budget requires to
collect them to the fund that statue or budget requires to spend them; to move receipts restricted to debt
service from the fund collecting the receipts to the Debt Service Fund as debt service payments become
due; to use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for
in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, and to move money inio the Capital Projects

Fund to be spent on capital projects.

Note 8 - Capital Assets

Changes in the City's capital assets are as follows:

Balance Balance
January 1, Transfers/ December 31,
Class 2010 Additions Deletions 2010
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,642,727 1,778,800 % - % 4,421,627
Construction-in-progress 536,767 6,571,883 (203,518} 6,905,132
Total Capital Assets, not being
depreciated 3 3,179,494 8,350,783 3% (203,5618) $ 11,326,759
Capital Assets, being depreciated:
Buildings $ 29,917,169 702,908 § - $ 30,620,077
Improvements other than buildings 100,327,372 399,064 203,518 100,929,954
Machinery and equipment 10,119,212 182,617 {566,062) 9,735,767
Infrastructure 21,559,280 1,332,235 - 22,891,515
Total Capital Assets, being
depreciated 161,923,033 2,616,824 {362,544) 164,177,313
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Batance Balance
January 1, Transfers/ December 31,
Class 2010 Additions Deletions 2010
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings $ 3,826,834 $§ 440411 § - 4,267,245
Improvements other than buildings 100,097,277 201,123 - 100,298,400
Machinery and equipment 7,502,104 562,449 {526,096) 7,538,457
Infrastructure 8,339,261 458,585 - 8,797,856
Total Accumulated Depreciation 118,765,476 1,662,578 (526,096) 120,901,958
Total Capital Assets, being
depreciated, net $ 42157557 § 954246 % 163,652 § 43,275,355
Governmental Activitles
Capital Assets, net $ 45337051 $ 9305028 3 {30,966) $ 54,602,114
Baiance Balance
January 1, December 31,
Class 2010 Additions Transfers 2010
Business-type Activities:
Capital Assets, not being depreciated;
Land $ 102498642 % - $ - § 10,249642
Construction-in-progress 10,336,380 838,881 {1,566,785) 0,608,476
Total Capital Assets, not being
depreciated $ 20,586,022 $ 838881 $ (1,566,785 $ 19,858,118
Capital Assets, being depreciated:
Buildings $ 1387242 % - $ - § 1,387,242
Improvements other than buiidings 415,722 - - 415,722
Machinery and equipment 2,625,456 43,350 566,062 3,234,868
Infrastructure 38,345,932 204,000 1,566,785 40,118,717
Total Capital Assets, being ‘
depreciated 42,774,352 247,350 2,132,847 45,154,549
Less Accumulated Depreclation for:
Buildings 260,342 13,622 - 273,864
improvemenits other than buildings 253,622 36,842 - 290,464
Machinery and equipment 1,120,439 204,111 526,098 1,850,646
Infrastructure 17,566,086 568,218 - 18,134,304
Total Accumulated Depreciation 19,200,489 822,693 526,006 20,549,278
Total Capital Assets, being
depreciated, net $ 23573863 § (575,343) § 1,606,751 $ 24605271
Business-type Activities
Capital Assets, net $ 44,158,885 §$ 263538 § 39966 $ 44,463,389
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Depreciation expense was charged to the City's functions and programs as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government support $ 182,884
Public Safety 1,230,307
Transportation 66,503
Culture and Recreation 66,503
Home and Community Services 116,381
Total Depreciation Expense -
Government Activities $ 1,662,578
Business-type Aclivities:

Water Fund $ 333,206
Sewer Fund 477,497
Sanitation Fund 11,990

Total Depreciation Expense -
Business-type Activities $ 822,693

Note 9 - Short-Term Notes

In August 2010, the City re-issued $5,233,868 of Bond Anticipation Notes to finance renovations of the
City court facility. The same date the Cily also issued $12 million of Bond Anticipation Deficit Notes in
anticipation of the accumulated deficit at December 31, 2010. Both of these notes have interest payable
at 5.15% and mature on August 30, 2011.

In December 2010, the City re-issued $5,171,224 of Tax Anticipation Notes to provide the City with shori-
term cash financing and $17,092,530 of Bond Anticipation Notes to finance various items including
$7,143,465 for the Capital Projects Fund and $2,346,000 for settlement of an environmental claim. Both
have interest payable at 4.25% percent and mature November 30, 2011

Liabilities for bond anticipation notes are generally accounied for in the Capital Projects Fund. Bond
anticipation notes issued for judgments or settled claims are recorded in the fund paying the claim.
Principal payments on bond anticipation notes must be made annually. State law requires that bond
anticipation notes issued for capital purposes or judgmenis be converted to long-term obligations
generally within five years after the original issue date. However, bond anticipation notes issued for
assessable improvement projects may be renewed for periods that are equivalent to the maximum life of
the permanent financing, provided that stipulated annual reductions of principal are made.

At a minimum, principal payments on the two above bond anticipation notes totaling approximately $1.5
miflion will be required to be paid in 2011.

The Newburgh Fiscal Recovery Act (Chapter 223 of the Laws of 2010) authorizes the City to issue bonds
on or before December 31, 2011 in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $15,000,000, for the
purpose of liquidating actual deficits in its General Fund, Special Revenue Funds and Capital Projects
Fund existing at the close of its 2010 fiscal year. The Act provides that the financing of the deficits is a
purpose of the City for which indebtedness may be incurred, the period of probable usefulness of which
would be fixed af 15 years.
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The Act also requires the City, upon the issuance of the deficit notes, to establish a Special Debt Service
Fund with the State Comptroller for the purpose of paying City debt service due or becoming due in
subsequent fiscal years. The State Compfroller is authorized to deposit State aid payable to the City and
a pottion of the City's property tax collections into the Special Debt Service Fund as necessary to ensure
sufficient moneys are available to make scheduled debt service payments over the succeeding twelve
month period after accounting for the City's receipt of taxes and State aid during such period. As soon
as practicable thereafter, the State Comptroller is required to pay over to the City any remaining amounts
of State aid and City property taxes that are not needed to reserve for debt service. At December 31,
2010, $500,000 was held in by the State in this Fund.

The schedule below details the changes in short-term capital borrowings.

Year of Balance Maturities Balance
Original Interest January 1, New andfor December 31,
Purpose Issue Rate 2010 issues Payments 2010
Governmental Type Activities -
Generat Fund
Tax Anticipation Notes 2009 400% § 5809750 § - % 5608750 3 -
Tax Anticipation Notes 2010 5.25 - 5,171,224 - 5,171,224
Bond Anticipation Notes;
Claim Settlement 2009B 4.00 2,098,310 - 2,098,310 -
Claim Settlement 2010C 5.25 - 2,346,000 - 2,346,000
Deficit Financing Notes 2010B 5.15 - 12,300,000 - 12,000,000
Capital Projects Fund -
Various Projects 2008A 4.875 5,233,868 - 5,233,868 -
Various Projects 2010A 5.15 - 5,233,868 - 5,233,868
Various Projects 2008B 4.00 9,983,220 - 9,883,220 -
Various Projects 2010C 5.25 - 7,143,465 - 7,143,465
Business Type Activities -
Bond Anticipation Motes:
Sewer Fund-
Various Projects 20098 4,00 5,011,000 - 5,011,000 -
Various Projects 2010C 5.25 - 5,326,836 - 5,326,836
Water Find-
Various Projects 2010C 525 - 2,276,229 - 2,276,229
§ 27936148 §$ 39497622 3§ 27,936,148 § 39497622

Interest expense of $877,032 was recorded in the governmental funds and $1,160,760 was recorded in

the government-wide financial statemenis for governmental activities.

Note 10 - Long Term Obligations

The following table summarizes changes in the City’s long-term obligations for the year ended December

31, 2010:

Governmental Activities:
Bonds Payable

Loans Payable

Balance Maturities Balance
January 1, Mew Issues/ and/or December 31, Due Within
2010 Additions Payments 2010 One Year
$ 20919208 3 3 1,012,608 § 19,806,600 § 1,043,811
1,615,000 310,000 1,305,000 310,000
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Other Mon-Current Liabllities:
Capital Leases Payable
Energy Performance Coniract Payable
Claims Payable
Compensated Absences
Other Post Employment Benefit
Obligation Payable

Total Other Non-Current Liabilities

Governmental Activities - Long-Term Liabiities

Business-Type Activifies:
Bonds Payable

Loans Payable

Compensated Absences

Other Post Employment Benefit
Obligation Payable

Business-Type Activities -
Long-Term Liabilities

Balance Maturities Balance

January 1, New Issues/ andfor Decamber 31, Due Within

2010 Additions Payments 2010 One Year
54,740 133,011 53,830 133,921 44,760
1,576,480 - 86,433 1,490,047 90,179
3,759,169 1,858,055 1,865,183 3,752,041 490,404
3,597,522 417,998 359,752 3,655,768 366,000
14,324,768 9,352,061 2,768,902 20,907,927 -
23,312,678 11,761,125 5,134,100 28,939,704 991,343
$ 45845,887 § 11,769,125 § 85,456,708 § 51,161,304 § 2,345,254
$ 5,755,792 § - § 342382 3 5413400 § 346,090
8,227,127 - 319,692 7,907,435 321,657
385,449 58,746 38,545 405,650 40,500
1,062,776 974,545 278,932 1,758,389 -
$ 15431144 § 1,033,201 $ 979,561 $ 15,484,874 3 708,247

Governmental fund liabilities for bonds, loans, capital leases and energy performance contracts are
liquidated by the General and Community Development funds. Each governmental fund’s lability for
compensated absences and other post employment benefit obligations are liquidated by the respective

fund, primarily the General, Water and Sewer funds.

A, Bonds Payahle

Bonds payable at December 31, 2010 are comprised of the following individual issues:

Amount
Cutstanding
Original at

Year of [ssue Final Interest December 31,

Purpose Issue Amount Maturity Rates 2010
Various Purposes 1899 $ 7,195,000 May, 2019 477 % $ 4,220,000
Refunding Bonds 1999 2,650,000 September, 2014 45-475 % 650,000
Public Improvemenis 2003 1,000,000 December, 2023 469 % 745,000
Public Improvements 2008 9,043,100 July, 2033 4.0-6.00 % 7,940,000
Public Improvements 2008 12,210,000 September, 2036 40-6.00 % 11,765,000
$ 32,088,100 $ 25,320,000

Interest expenditures of $897,129 were recorded in the fund financial statements in the General
Fund. Interest expense of $933,098 was recorded in the government-wide financial statements
for governmental activities. Interest expense of $263,548 was recorded in the Enterprise Fund
financial statements and in the government-wide financial statements for business-type activities.
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B.

Loans Payable

The foans were advanced to the Community Development Fund under the Department of
Housing and Urban Development's Section 108 Loan Guarantee Program. The loan proceeds
were provided to local businesses within the City. The balance due at December 31, 2010 was
$1,305,000. The loans bear interest at rates ranging from 4.75% io 7.5%, depending upon
maturity. Interest and principal are payable in quarterly instailments. The loans mature through
2014,

Interest expenditures of $108,088 were recorded in the fund financial statements in the
Community Development Fund. interest expense of $99,625 was recorded in the government-
wide financial statements for governmental activities.

The City, in 2001 and 2005, received loans from the New York State Environmental Facilities
Corporation in the amounts of $4,273,923 and $5,674,277, respectively, to finance improvements
to its drinking water systems. These interest free loans are due in annual installments through
2031 and 2035, respectively. The balance due at December 31, 2010 was $7,807,435.

Capital Leases

The City has entered into five capital lease agreements io acquire computer equipment as
follows:

Outstanding Date
Year Lease Original Monthly Interest December Final
Entered For Amount Paymenis Rates 31, 2010 Payment
2007 Computers $ 101,135 § 2,343 564 % $ 16,103 July, 2011
2007 Computers 27,607 640 5.54 4,396 July, 20141
2010 Phone Sys. 133,011 2,646 7.30 113,422 February, 2015
$ 261,753 $ 5,829 $ 133,921

Interest expenditures/expenses of $9,030 were recorded in the fund financial statements in the
General Fund and in the government-wide financial statements.

Energy Performance Contract

The City, during 2007, entered into a $2,528,997 contractual agreement to install energy saving
equipment and/or to upgrade existing facilities to enhance performance. The agreement provides
for monthly payments ranging from $12,038 to $14,278, inciuding interest at 4.26% through
December 2022. The contract further provides that the savings in energy costs resulting from this
modernization will equal or exceed the payment terms. Interest expendituresfexpense of $65,330
was recorded in the fund financial statements in the General Fund and in the government-wide
financial statements. The balance due at December 31, 2010 was $1,490,047.
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E. Payments to Maturity

The annual requirements to amortize ali bonded, loans, capital lease and energy performance
centract debt outstanding as of December 31, 2010 including interest payments of $15,658,385
are as follows:

Governmental Activities -

Business-Type Activities -

Governmental Activities -

Year Ending Bonds Bonds Loans
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 $ 1,043,911 % 942,168 % 346,080 % 252,017 % 310,000 § 397,777
2012 960,213 886,511 354,786 234,373 565,000 632,182
2013 1,002,441 837,502 367,559 216,632 215,000 248,273
2014 999,177 786,778 375,823 198,137 215,000 231,880
2015 974,044 737,042 275,956 179,710 - -
2016-2020 4,976,814 2,924,123 1,368,186 687,519 - -
2021-2025 3,150,000 1,988,262 915,000 432,764 - -
2028-2030 2,710,000 1,367,313 865,000 243,344 - -
20312035 3,325,000 695,344 545,000 50,875 - -
2036 765,000 38,250 - - - -
$ 19,906,600 $ 11,203,293 $ 5,413,400 $ 2495371 $ 1,305,000 $ 1,509,912
Business-Type Activities - Governmental Activities - Governmental Activities -
Year Ending Loans Capilal Lease Energy Performance Contract
Deacember 31, Principal Inlerest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 $ 321,657 § - % 44760 $ 7887 % 90,178 $ 61,584
2012 323,622 - 26,131 5,616 94,087 57,676
2013 325,587 - 28,365 3,383 98,164 53,508
2014 327,552 - 30,127 1,620 102,418 49,344
2015 329,517 - 4,538 372 106,857 44,905
2016-2020 1,677,059 - - - 670,395 147,128
2021-2025 1,726,180 - - - 327,947 14,716
2026-2030 1,775,305 - - - - -
2031-2035 1,100,956 - - - - -
2036 - - - - - -
3 7907435 & - 3 133,921  § 18858 % 1,490,047 § 428,951
Year Ending Total Gity Combined QObligations
December 31, Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 2,156,597 % 1,661,413 § 3,818,010
2012 2,323,839 1,816,358 4,140,197
2013 2,037,116 1,359,388 3,396,504
2014 2,050,097 1,267,559 3,317,656
2015 1,690,812 962,029 2,652,941
2016-2020 8,692,454 3,758,770 12,451,224
2021-2025 6,119,127 2,435,742 8,654,869
2026-2030 5,350,305 1,610,657 6,960,962
20312035 4,970,956 746,219 5,717,175
2036 765,000 38,250 803,250
3 36156403 $ 15656,385 $ 51,812,788
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The above general obligation bonds, loans, capital leases and energy performance contract debt
are direct obligations of the City, for which its full faith and credit are pledged and are payable from
taxes levied on all taxable real property within the City.

F. Compensated Absences

In accordance with the City’s collective bargaining agreements, all employees may accumulate sick
leave based upon length of service. Upon retirement, employees are compensated for
accumulated sick leave pursuant to contract provisions. Vacation time earned during the year is
generally taken in the year earned, however, with permission; certain employees may carryover
vacation leave to the following year. Police employees may accumulate compensatory time up to a
maximum of 96 hours. In addition to the $405,650 recorded in the Proprietary Funds, a $3,665,768
liability for compensated absences at December 31, 2010 has been reflected in the government-
wide financial statements for the governmental funds.

G. Claims Payable

The government-wide statements reflect workers’ compensation benefit liabilities and general
liability claims liabilities, which are based upon estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including
future ctaim adjustment expenses) that have been reported, but not settled, and of claims that have
been incurred but not reported (IBMR's). The length of time for which such costs must be estimated
varies depending on the coverage involved. Because actual claim costs depend on such complex
factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability and damage awards, the process used in
computing claim liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claim liabilities are
recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce current
estimates that reflect settlements, claim frequency and other economic and social factors. A
provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated fuiure costs is implicit in the calculation
because reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflects past inflation and other factors
that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience.

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2008
Workers' General Workers' General
Compensation Liability Compensation Liability
Balance - Beginning of Year $ 2040728 $ 1,718441 % 1,440,168 $ 1,100,365
Provision for Claims and
Claims Adjustment Expenses 1,735,374 122,681 1,802,263 1,811,935
Claims and Claims Adjustment
Expenses Paid {1,127,150) {738,033) {(1,201,703) {1,284,167)
Balance - End of Year $ 2848952 $ 1,103089 $ 2040728 $ 1,628,133
Current Portion 3 265,000 $ 97,000 $ 204,053 § 162,813
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Also included in claims payable is $128,404 for tax certiorari claims and various legal settiements.
The current portion of all claims is $490,404.

H. Other Post Employment Benefit Obligations Payable

The GASB has issued Statement No. 45 — Accounting and Financial Reporting by Empioyers for
Post Employment Benefifs Other Than Pensions. Gther post employment benefits ("OPEB"}
includes any form of benefit offered to attract or retain the services of qualified employees that will
be paid after the employee leaves employment (i.e. health insurance). This Statement requires
that the projected costs of these benefits should be associated with the periods in which the
employee is empioyed. Thus the City is required fo record a current year expense and lability on
the accrual basis in the Cily-wide financial statements and in the business type funds for the
projected costs to be incurred after the employee leaves employment. Currently, the City only
records the actual payments made for OPEB cost in the governmental funds. The City has
recognized revenues and expenditures of $115,679 for Medicare Part D payments made directly to
its health insurance carrier on behalf of its retirees.

The City does provides certain health care benefits for retired employees as set forth in various
collective bargaining agreements that stipulate the employees covered and the percentage of
contribution. Contributions to be made by the City may vary according to length of service.
Substantially all of the City's employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach
normal retirement age while working for the City.

The City’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution, (*ARC"}, an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of the GASB Statement. That
Statement establishes standards for the measurement, recognition and display of the expenses
and liabilities for retirees’ medical insurance. As a result, reporting of expenses and liabilites will no
longer be done under the “"pay-as-you-go” approach. Instead of expensing the current year
premiums paid, a per capita claims cost will be determined, which will be used to determine a
“normal cost”, an "actuarial accrued liability”, and ultimately the ARC. The ARC reprasents a level
of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normai cost each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years.

Actuarial valuations for OPEB plans involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. These amounis are subject to
continual revision as results are compared {0 past expectations and new estimates are made about
the fulure. Calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the terms of the
substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs
between the employer and plan members to that point. In addition, the assumptions and
projections utilized do not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding
limitations on the patiern of cost sharing between the employer and plan members in the future.
The actuarial calculations of the OPEB plan reflect a long-term perspective.

The City is required to accrue on the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statemenis
the amounts necessary to finance the plan as actuarially determined, which is equal fo the
expected rate of return on the City's generai assets. Funding for the Plan has been established
on a pay-as-you-go basis. The assumed rates of increase in postretirement benefits are as
follows:
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Year Ended Pre-65 Post-65 Prescription
December 31, Medical Medical Drug

2011 9.50 % 8.50 % 9.00 %
2012 8.50 8.00 8.00
2013 7.50 7.50 7.50
2014 7.00 7.00 7.00
2015 6.50 6.50 8.50
2016 6.00 8.00 6.00
2017 5.50 5.50 5.50
2018+ 5.00 5.00 5.00

The amortization basis is the level dollar method with an open amortization approach with 28
years remaining in the amortization period. The unit credit method was used to determine the
actuarial value of the assets of the OPEB plan, however, the City currently has no assets set
aside for the purpose of paying post employment benefits. The actuarial cost method utilized

was the proiected unit credit method.

The number of participants as of December 31, 2010 was as follows:

Governmental  Enterprise
2010 Funds Funds Total

Active Employees 233 47 280

Retired Employees 226 11 237

459 58 517

Governmental Enterprise
Funds Funds Total
Amortization Component:

Actuarial Accrued Liability as of 1/1/10 $ 107923595 § 7,383611 % 115,307,206
Assets at Market Value - - -
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability {("UAAL") $ 107923595 § 7,383,611t $ 115,307,206
Funded Ratio 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Covered Payroll {Active plan members) $ 20340845 $ 2542583 § 22,883,428
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 530.58% 290.40% 503.89%
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Governmental Enterprise
Funds Funds Total
Annual Required Contribution $ 98607473 & 983,421 $ 10,600,894
interest on Net OPEB Obligation 572,991 42,511 615,502
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution {828,403) {61,461) (889,864)
Annual OPEB Cost 9,352,061 974,471 10,326,532
Contributions Made {2,768,902) {278,932) (3,047,834)
Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 6,583,159 695,539 7,278,698
Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year 14,324,768 1,082,850 15,387,618
Net OPEB Obligation - End of Year $ 20907927 $ 1,758,389 $ 22666316

The City’'s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net
(QOPEB obligation for the current and two preceding year is as follows:

Fiscal Percentage of
Year Ended Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
December 31, OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
2010 $ 10,326,605 2951 % § 22,666,316
2009 10,483,708 25.52 % 15,387,618
2008 10,147,568 25.31 % 7,579,154

Note 11 - Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenues in the fund financial statements are those where asset recognition criteria have been
mei, bui for which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. The City has reporied deferred
revenues of $1,227,709 for real property taxes and $916,075 for State aid and other items received in
advance in the General Fund, $1,698,613 for long-term loans in the Community Development Fund and
$76,558 in the Grants Fund for State and Federal aid received in advance. Such amounts have been
deemed to be measurable but not "available” pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles.

Note 12 - Pension Plans

The Cily participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System ("ERS"Y and the
New York State and Locail Police and Fire Retirement System ("PFRS”) {("Systems”). These Systems are
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans. The Systems provide retirement benefiis as
well as death and disability benefifs. Obligations of employers and employees are set forth in the New
York State Retirement and Social Security Law ("NYSRSSL®). As set forth in the NYSRSSL, the
Complroller of the State of New Yark serves as sole trustee and administrative head of the Systems. The
Comptroller shall adopt and amend rules and regulations for the administration and transaction of the
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business of the Systems and for the custody and controi of the funds heid by each. The Systems issue a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. This report may be obtained by writing to the New York State and Local Employees’
Retirement System, Office of the State Comptroller, 110 State Sireet, Albany, New York 12224,

Funding Policy - The Systems are non-contributory, except for employees who joined ERS after July 27,
1976 that have less than ten years of service, who contribute 3% of their salary. Under the authority of the
NYSRSSL the Comptroller certifies annually rates, expressed as a percentage of members’ salary, which
shall be used in computing the contributions required to be made by employees to the Systems’
accumulation fund, Contribution rates are actuarially determined and based upon membership tier and
plan. Contributions consist of a life insurance portion and regular pension contributions. Contribution rates
for the plan year ended March 31, 2011 are as follows:

—Tier/Plan —Rate

ERS 1 75l 15.3%

2 75t 14.0

3 A4 11.3

4 A15 11.3

5 Al5 9.1
PFRS 1 384D 21.9%

2 375 12.5

2 384D 16.8

3 384D 16.5

The City is required to contribute at the actuarially determined rates set by the Comptroller. The required
contributions made to the Systems and the percent of the City's covered payrolls for the current and two
preceding years were as follows:

ERS PFRS
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
2010 % 885,281 121% $ 1,974,358 15.5 %
2009 640,009 7.3 1,849,118 13.8
2008 648,796 9.0 1,881,052 14.6

The City’s contributions made fo the Systems were equal to 100% of the actuarially required contribution
for each year.
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Note 12 - Pension Plans (Continued)

The current ERS contribution for the City was charged to the funds identified below. The current PFRS
contribution was charged to the General Fund.

Fund Amount
General $ 589,463
Community Development 11,933
Grants 16,914
Water 128,400
Sewer 44 666
Sanitation 103,905
$ 895,281

Note 13 - Net Assets

The components of net assets are detailed below:

Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt - the component of net assets that reports the
difference between capital assets less both the accumulated depreciation and the outstanding
balance of debt, excluding unexpended proceeds, that is directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets.

Restricted for Special Revenue Funds - the component of net asseis that represents funds
restricted for certain purposes under New York State law or by external parties and/or statutes.

Restricted for Debt Service - the component of net asseis that reports the difference between
assets and liabilities with constraints place on their use by Local Finance Law.

Unrestricted - all other net assets that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "invested in capital
assets, net of related debt".

Note 14 - Fund Balances

Certain elements of reserved fund balance are described above. Those additional elements which are not
reflected in the statement of net assets but are reported in the governmental funds balance sheet are
described below:

Encumbrances outstanding have been reserved as it is the City's intention to honor purchase orders
and contracts in process at year-end. The subsequent year's appropriation will be amended to provide
authority to complete the transactions.

The Reserve for Prepaid Expenditures has been established to account for employee retirement and

other costs paid in advance. The reserve indicates that these funds are not "available" for
appropriation or expenditure even though they are a component of current assets.
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Note 14 - Fund Balances (Continued)

The Reserve for Long-Term Receivables is used to indicate that certain amounts will not be collected in
sufficient time o satisfy liabilities of the currant period.

The Reserve for Trusts has been established to set aside funds in accordance with the terms of the
granis,

Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies

A.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss including, but not limited to, torts, theft of, damage to,
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employees’ health and life; and
natural disasters. These risks are covered by commercial insurance purchased by independent
third parties. The City believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured
loss. Judgments and claims are recorded when it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a
liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated.

The City became self-insured for property/liability loss exposures in October 1978 and worker's
compensation in December 1879. The Cily is also self-insured for unemployment insurance.
Excess loss insurance is purchased for all properiy/liability and worker's compensation loss
exposures.

The property/liability risks include automobile liability, physical damage, general liability, building
and contents for City owned property, police professional liability and public official liability. The
City currently retains losses up to $500,000 per occurrence for liability and $250,000 for property,
above which coverage is provided by excess coverage. Excess coverage is for $5 million per claim
and $10 million aggregate, over the $500,000 retention. Properly is covered for approximately $46
million in excess of the $250,000 retention. Losses have not exceeded insurance coverage during
the past three years.

For worker's compensation and employer’s liability, the City retains $250,000 per occurrence for all
employees, except firefighters which the City retains $600,000 per occurrence. Excess insurance
provides protection up to statutory limits for worker's compensation and for a total of $1 million for
employers’ liability. Losses have not exceeded insurance coverage during the last three policy
years. Effective in 2009, the City no longer maintains a seif-insurance reserve for its future worker's
compensation claims.

A summary of changes in the claims reserve for the past three years is as foliows:

Current Year

Claims and
Beginning Estimate Claim Ending
Liability Changes Paymenis Liability
2010 $ 3,759,169 $ 1,858,056 § 1,865,183 $ 3,752,041
2009 3,266,243 3,704,506 3,211,580 3,759,169
2008 5,636,037 (524,959} * 1,744,835 3,266,243

*  Includes a prior period adjustment of $3,730,649
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

The City pays unemployment insurance to eligible employees based on their last salary with a
maximum payment of $405 per week for 26 weeks, or as extended by Federal/State legislation.
The New York State Department of Labor initially pays unemployment benefits to eligible
employees and the City reimburses the State Unemployment Insurance Fund payments totaled
$225,597 in 2010.

The City has contracted with an insurance service company to administer and process claims
under the self-insurance program. The City has established an insurance reserve to record self
insurance program activities. Reserve additions consist primarily of contributions from other funds
and are planned to match the total of expenditures/expenses of claims from the self-insurance
program, insurance premiums for coverage in excess of seif-insurance retention amounts and other
related operating expenditures/expenses.

B. Litigation

The City is pariy to various legal proceedings that normally occur in the course of governmental
operations. Major ouistanding cases are as follows:

The City is party to a properly loss case as a result of three separate sewage backups on
property focated within the City. The City is vigerously defending this case.

The City is being sued 1o recover damages for alleged improper revocation of a building
permit. The Cily claims that the revocation was proper and is vigorously defending this
case.

The City, in common with other municipalities, receives numerous nofices of claims for
money damages arising from civil rights violations, false arrest, property damage, personal
injury, wrongfui termination of employment or denial of 207-¢ benefits.

The above claims have been forwarded to the City’s administrator of their self-insured risk retention
program (see note above detailing risk management policy limitations). The City's liability would be
limited to their self-insured retention levels.

An estimate of the ultimate amounts due by the City has been accrued in the government wide
Statement of Net Assets within claims payable.

The City is a defendant in numerous tax cerliorari proceedings, the result of which cannot be

determined at this time. Any future refunds resulting from adverse settlements will be funded in the
year the payments are made.
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Concluded)
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Note 15 - Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

C.

Contingencies
Compliance Audits

The City pariicipates in a number of programs that are fully or partially funded by grants received
from other governmental entities. Expenditures financed by granis are subject to audit by the
appropriate grantor government or agency. An independent audit of these programs has been
performed for all prior years and will be conducted for all applicable 2010 expenditures in
compliance with: 1) requirements stated in the Federal Single Audit Act of 1986 and Office of
Budget and Management Circular A-133, and 2} compliance requirements described in the
preliminary Draft Part 43 of the New York State Codification of Rules and Regulations applicable to
state transportation assistance. The amounts, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by ihe
granting government or agency cannot be determinad at this time, although any such amounts are
expected to be immaterial.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
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LAST THREE FISCAL YEARS
Unfunded
Actuarial Unfunded Liability as a
Actuarial Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Date Asseis Liakility Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll
“January 1,2008 $ - % 111,522,540 $ 111,522,540 - % § 22,571,542 494,08 %
January 1, 2009 - 116,985,560 116,985,560 - 24,426,989 478,92
January 1, 2010 - 115,307,208 115,307,206 - 22,883,428 503.89



CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

. REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL AND
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

General Fund

Variance with
Final Budget
Qriginal Final Posilive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues:
Real property taxes $ 13203274 & 13203274 § 12592214 § {611,080)
Other tax items 1,725,000 1,285,918 1,803,346 507,428
Non-property taxes 10,014,122 9,681,877 10,039,328 357,451
Deparimental income 3,003,000 836,833 1,828,682 991,849
Intragovermmentat charges 1,787,975 1,833,467 1,242,675 {890,792)
Intergovernmentat charges 455,739 357,664 537,451 179,787
Use of money and property 70,500 51,100 90,364 39,264
Licenses and permits 289,050 289,050 286,144 {2,906)
Fines and forfeitures 495000 495,600 388,553 (108,447)
State aid 5,905,317 5,662,873 5,516,662 (146,211)
Federal aid 899,000 801,500 37,118 (864,382)
Miscelianeous 470,050 474,050 239,974 {234,0786)
Total Revenuss 38,318,027 35,082,606 34,602,511 {480,655)
Expenditures:
Current;
General goverinen! support 6,282,587 6,881,018 5,777,828 1,103,088
Public safety 23,288,860 24,446,324 23,328,215 1,118,162
Transporation 3,078,162 3,128,432 2,579,873 548,559
Economic opportunity and
development 64,892 64,892 606,867 {541,975)
Culture and recreation 2,243,695 2,289,391 1,066,686 1,233,695
Home and communily services ) 2,923,169 345,898 325,360 20,538
Employee benefits 2,916,729 2,664,352 1,873,027 691,325
Debt service:
Principat - 1,161,676 1,152,871 {1,185)
Interest - 2,308,366 2,088,052 238314
Tolal Expenditures 40,807 284 43,288,347 38,877,889 4,410,458
Excess (Deficlency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (2,489,257) (8,205,741) {4,275,378) 3,830,363
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Insurance recoveres - - 61,696 61,586
Premiums on obligations - - 211472 211,472
Transfers in - B 80,920 90,920
Transfers out (3,033,276} {1,207,543) (916,065) 201,478
Totel Cther Financing Uses (3,033,276} {1,207,543) {552,077) 655,466
Net Change in Fund Balances ' {6,522,533) {8,413,284) (4,827,455) 4,585,829
Fund Balances
Beginning of Year 5,522,533 8,413,284 1,621,750 (7.791,534)
Fund Balances {Deficlls) - End of Year $ - % - $ (3205705 $ (3,205,705)
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Community Development Fund

Variance wilh
Fina! Budget
Qriginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
- - % - 8 .
- - 82,854 82,854
- - 9,300 9,300
833,817 1,089,449 481,751 (577,698)
- - 493,288 493,288
833817 1,059,449 1,087,293 7.844
833,817 1,059,449 506,231 553,218
. . 310,000 (310,000}
- - 108,088 (108,088)
833817 1,058,449 924,319 135,130
- - 142,974 142,974
. - 142,974 142,974
- - 2,797,408 2,797,408
- - § 29840332 § 2840382
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Budgetary Procedures

The budget process begins mid-year at which time department heads prepare estimates of revenues and
expenditures for the following year. Department estimates must be submitted to the City Manager on or
about August 15", The City Manager reviews each depariment’s request, conducts meetings with
depariment personnel and assembles the preliminary budget.

The preliminary budget is submitted to the Mayor and City Council, no later the second Tuesday in
October. Upon receipt, the City Council shall order a copy to be filed in the City Clerk’s office, who shall
publish a notice in the official newspaper of the City of Newburgh, New York to the effect that the City
Council will hold public sessions on the preliminary budget during the months of October and November,

The budget estimate may be inspected at any time during office hours and prior to the second Monday in
November in the Office of the City Clerk.

A formal public hearing is held by the City Council on the budget in November. Members of the public may
express their views; however, there is no formal vote on the budget at ihis meeting

Not later than at its regular meeting on the fourth Monday in November, the Compiroller receives the
revised budget from the City Council and prepares the final version for adoption. in amending the
preliminary budget, the City Council may increase or decrease or reject any item contained in the budget
estimate except for items relating to indebtedness, fixed charges or estimated revenues.

On or before the last Monday in November, the operating budgets are legally enacted through adoption of
an ordinance by the City Council. The budget is not subject to referendum.

If, not later than at its meeting on the fourth Monday in November, the City Council does not adopt or
amend to adopt the preliminary budget as submitted by the City Manager, it shall be deemed to have been
adopted unchanged as submitted by the City Manager.

A. Formal budgetary integration is employed during the year as a management control device for
General, Community Development and Debt Service funds.

B. Budgets for General, Community Development and Debt Service funds are legally adopted
annually on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. The Capital Projects
Fund is budgeted on a project basis. The City does not adopt an annual  budget for the Special
Purpose Funds.

Once the budget has been approved, in order to amend the budget during the year the following
procedures are authorized:

A. Transfers of budget appropriations within each department with the approval of the City Manager.

B. Transfers of budget appropriations between departments with the approval of the City Council.

C. All increases in budgeted revenues and related expenditures by resolution approved by the City
Council.

The Comptroller may not disburse money is excess of appropriated amounts.
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Concluded)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2010

Encumbrance accounting is used to control the adopted budget. Issued but incomplete purchase orders,
contracts, or other commitments are recorded in order to reserve that portion of an applicable
appropriation. At the end of the year all appropriations lapse in the General, Community Development and
Debt Service funds. Ouistanding encumbrances at year end are recorded as a reservation of fund balance
since they do not constitute expendifures or liabilities of the City. Ouistanding encumbrances in the
General, Community Development and Debt Service funds are re-appropriated in the succeeding year fo
provide authority to complete these transactions in due course, pursuant to the Uniform System of
Accounts promulgated by the Office of the State Comptroller.

Budgeted amounts are as adopted, and as amended.
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ASSETS

Cash;
Demand deposits
Petty cash

Taxes Recelvable:
City, County and School District taxes
Property acqulred for taxes

Allowance for uncollectible armounts

Other Recejvables:
Accounts, net of allowance for uncollectibles
of $222,660 in 2010 and $120,347 2009
Pue from other governments, net of allowance for uncolfectibles
of $83,761 in 2010 and $327,583 in 2008
Due from component unit - Industrial Development Agency
Due from other funds

Prepald Expenditures
Total Assels

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due {o component unit - Industrial Development Agency
Due {o component unit - Local Development Corporation
Due to other governments
Due {o school districts
Bond anticipation note payable
Tax anticipation note payable
Due to other funds
Overpayments
Deferrad tax revenues
Deferred revenues

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance (Deflicit):
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for prepaid expenditures
Reserved for long-term recelvables
Reserved for debt service
Unreserved and undesignated

Total Fund Balance (Deficit)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance {Deficit)
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2010 2008
$ 11,014,764 § 8,343,339
3 530 3,530
11,018,294 8,346,869
3,836,993 4,029,175
2,257,663 2.013.903
6,004,656 6,043,078
(2,468,004) (2,172,222)
3,626,652 3,870,856
1,167,714 3,482,026
3,258,444 5,069,398
N 1.437,355
3,200,175 7,262,043
7,626,333 16,051,722
650,864 32,123
$ 22022143 § 29,201,570
$ 2192793 § 6,498,702
640,287 537,286
416,716 416,716
135,452 1,638,918
919,741 4,383,145
14,346,000 2,098,310
5,171,224 5,609,750
. 2,795,723
161,851 151,558
1,227,709 1,236,021
918,075 2,213,691
26,127,848 27,579,820
34,874 22,533
650,864 32,123
2 135,944 2,952,088
90,920 -
(6,118,307) (1,384,994)
(3,205,705) 1,621,750
$ 22022143 § 29,201,570




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

GENERAL FUND

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

2010
Varlance with
Final Budget
Orlginal’ Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues:

Real property taxes 3 13,203,274 $ 13203274 % 12592214 % (611,080}

Other tax items 1,725,000 1,295,918 1,803,346 507,428

Nen-property taxes 10,014,122 9,681,877 10,039,328 357,451

Departmental incoms 3,003,000 836,833 1,828,662 991,849

Infragovernmental charges 1,787,975 1,833,467 1,242,675 (590,792}

[ntergovernmental charges 455,739 367,664 537,451 179,787

Use of money and property 70,500 651,100 90,364 39,264

Licenses and permits 289,060 289,050 286,144 (2,906}

Fines and forfeltures 495,000 495,000 388,553 {106,447)

State aid 5,905,317 5,662,873 5,516,662 {148,211}

Federal aid 899,000 901,500 37,118 (864,382}

Miscellanecus 470,050 474,05C 239,974 (234,076)

Total Revenues 38,318,027 35,082,606 34,602,511 (480,095)
Expenditures:

Current:

General government support 6,292,687 6,881,018 5,777,928 1,103,088
Public safety 23,288,860 24,446,324 23,328,215 1,118,109
Transportation 3,078,162 3,128,432 2,579,873 548,659
Economic opportunity and

development 64,802 64,802 806,867 (641,975)
Culture and recreation 2,243,885 2,299,391 1,065,696 1,233,685
Home and communky services 2,623,159 345,898 325,360 20,638
Employee benefits 2,915,729 2,664,352 1,873,027 691,325

Debt service: :

Principal - 1,151,676 - 1,162,871 {1,185}
interest - 2,306,366 2,068,052 238,314
Total Expenditures 40,807,284 43,288 347 38,877,889 4,410,458
Deficiency of Revenues
Qver Expenditures {2,489,257) (8,205,741) {4,275,378) 3,930,363
Other Financing Sources (Uses),

insurance recoveries - - 61,598 61,6986

Obligations authorlzed - - “ . -

Pramiums on obligations - - 211,472 211,472

Transfers In - - 90,920 90,920

Transfers out {3,033,276) (1,207,543) {9186,065) 291,478

Total Other Financing Uses {3,033,276) {1,207,543) {552,077} 655,466
Net Change in Fund Balance {6,622,633) (9,413,284} (4,827,455) 4,585,829
Fund Balance -

Beginning of Year, as reported 5,522 533 9,413,284 1,621,750 (7,791,534)
Prior Period Adjustments - - = -
Fund Balance -

Beginning of Year, as restated 5,522,533 $,413,284 1,621,750 {7,791,534)

Fund Balance - £nd of Year $ - 8 - 8§ (3205705) $ {(3,206,705)
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2009

Variance with
Final Budget
QOriginal Finat Positive
Budget Budgst Actual (Negative)
12,348,730 $ 12,348,739 § 12,048917 § {299,822)
3,838,000 3,838,000 1,689,477 (2,148,523}
10,471,000 10,471,000 9,835,378 {635,622)
2,810,469 2,893,180 3,251,528 358,338
2,459,901 2,459,901 1,816,801 {643,100)
449,860 494,600 745,218 250,616
326,500 326,500 82,488 {244,012)
310,000 310,000 272,917 {37,083)
375,000 375,000 491,268 116,268
7,055,442 7,469,218 6,544,585 {924,633)
1,703,029 2,216,827 1,600,048 (606,879)
415,500 417,058 178,782 (238,273)
42,563,180 43,620,030 38,567,305 (5,052,725)
7,065,200 8,928,567 10,080,172 (1,160,605}
24,361,111 24,508,013 24,529,935 (21,922)
3,423,016 3,723,025 2,813,642 909,383
74,835 74,935 50,301 24,634
3,577,422 4,624,483 3,054,825 1,469,658
2,628,688 2,628,666 2,591,261 37,405
1,777,048 1,878,418 1,747,938 130,480
- - 66,311 (66,311)
- - 171,631 {171,631)
42,897,419 46,267,107 45,116,016 1,151,091
(334,239} {2,647,077) (6,648,711) {3,001,634)
10,000 10,000 265,165 255,165
- 2,098,310 - {2,098,310)
- - 284,540 264,540
(2,183,072} {2,183,072) (2,183,072) -
(2,173,072} {74,762) (1,653,367) {1,578,605)
(2,507,311} {2,721,839) (8,202,078) {5,480,239)
2,507,311 2,721,832 8,376,829 5,654,990
- - 1,448 989 1,446,899
2,507,311 2,721,838 9,823,828 7,101,889
- 8§ - % 1621750 % 1,821,750
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES COMPARED TO BUDGET

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
(With Comparative Actuals for 2008)

REAL PROPERTY TAXES
OTHER TAX ITEMS

Gain on sale of tax acquired property
Payments in lieu of taxes
Interest and penalfies on real property taxes

NON-PROPERTY TAXES

Non-property tax distribution from County
Uilittes gross receipts taxes
Franchise fees

DEPARTMENTAL INCOME

Tax search charges
Tax sale advertising
Comptrolier

City manager
Assessor fees
Clerk fees

Civil service fees
Corporation counsel
Police

Fire

Public pound
Safety inspection
Vital statisfics
Public works

Variance with
Final Budget
Qriginal Final Positive 2009

Budget Budget Actual {(Negative) Actual
13,203,274 13,203,274 12,592,214  § {611,060) 12,048,917
400,000 400,000 725,608 325,608 689,749
700,000 270,918 265,361 (5,557) 346,066
625,000 625,000 812,377 187,377 653,672
1,725,000 1,285,918 1,803,346 507,428 1,689,477
8,139,122 7,980,247 8,423,278 443,031 8,075,723
1,625,000 1,451,630 1,345,865 {105,665) 1477647
250,000 250,000 270,085 20,085 282 008
10,014,122 9,681,877 10,039,328 357,451 9,835,378
75,000 75,000 61,180 (13,820) 54,650
95,000 95,000 97,350 2,350 91,950
70,000 70,000 191,669 121,869 172,551
- - 2 2 -
34,000 34,000 950 (33,050) 33,635
17,000 17,000 20,711 3,711 16,264
15,500 15,500 11,535 (3,965) 920
3,000 3,000 1,650 (1,350) 14,578
250,000 83,833 151,036 67,203 223,817
2,000 2,000 747 (1,253) 1,425
3,000 3,000 o8 (2,902) 3,137
200,000 200,000 159,854 (40,146) 147,828
70,000 70,000 70,678 678 67,406
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€9

Parking lot fees

Metered parking

Parks and recreation

Summer camp

Youth employment and training program
Planning and zoning fees

Architectural review

Sanitation fees

Miscellaneous

INTRAGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES

Charges for services to other funds;
Community Development Fund
Water Fund
Sewer Fund

INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES

Civil service

Prisoner transportation
Community resource officers
Urban renewal

USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY

Earnings on investments
Rental of real property
Commissions

6,000 6,000 7,973 1,973 6,159
65,000 65,000 34,312 (30,688) 61,601
55,000 55,000 52,899 2,101) 55,379
10,000 10,000 12,250 2,250 10,300

- - - - 89,982

26,500 26,500 40,172 13,672 21,494
6,000 6,000 6,925 925 8,165
2,000,000 - 868,482 863,482 1,856,075
- - 38,209 38,209 297 622
3,003,000 836,833 1,828,682 991,849 3,251,528
- 45,492 126,702 81,210 29,983

780,986 780,986 434,804 (346,182) 997,215
1,006,888 1,006,989 681,169 (325,820) 789,603
1,787,975 1,833,467 1,242,675 (590,792) 1,816,801
65,662 85,562 62,870 (2,692) 77,107
380,177 225,435 289,846 64,411 371,598

- 66,667 134,735 68,068 246,511

- - 50,000 50,000 50,000

455,738 357 664 537,451 179,787 745,216
30,000 10,600 27,454 16,854 3,609
39,000 38,000 62,910 23,810 77,947

1,600 1,500 - (1,500) 832
70,500 51,100 90,364 39,264 82,488

(Confinued)



€9

Parking lot fees

Metered parking

Parks and recreation

Summer camp

Youth employment and training program
Planning and zoning fees

Architectural review

Sanitation fees

Miscellaneous

INTRAGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES

Charges for services to other funds;
Community Development Fund
Water Fund
Sewer Fund

INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES

Civil service

Prisoner transportation
Community resource officers
Urban renewal

USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY

Earnings on investments
Rental of real property
Commissions

6,000 6,000 7,973 1,973 6,159
65,000 65,000 34,312 (30,688) 61,601
55,000 55,000 52,899 2,101) 55,379
10,000 10,000 12,250 2,250 10,300

- - - - 89,982

26,500 26,500 40,172 13,672 21,494
6,000 6,000 6,925 925 8,165
2,000,000 - 868,482 863,482 1,856,075
- - 38,209 38,209 297 622
3,003,000 836,833 1,828,682 991,849 3,251,528
- 45,492 126,702 81,210 29,983

780,986 780,986 434,804 (346,182) 997,215
1,006,888 1,006,989 681,169 (325,820) 789,603
1,787,975 1,833,467 1,242,675 (590,792) 1,816,801
65,662 85,562 62,870 (2,692) 77,107
380,177 225,435 289,846 64,411 371,598

- 66,667 134,735 68,068 246,511

- - 50,000 50,000 50,000

455,738 357 664 537,451 179,787 745,216
30,000 10,600 27,454 16,854 3,609
39,000 38,000 62,910 23,810 77,947

1,600 1,500 - (1,500) 832
70,500 51,100 90,364 39,264 82,488

(Confinued)
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES COMPARED TO BUDGET (Continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(With Comparative Actuals for 2008)

Variance with
Final Budget
Criginal Final Positive 2009
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual

LICENSES AND PERMITS
Business and occupational licenses 25,800 25,800 38,823 13,023 $ 11,080
Dog licenses 2,750 2,750 1,617 (1,133) 1,967
Building permits 168,000 168,000 102,727 (65,273) 157,562
Street opening permits 37,500 37,500 63,825 26,325 31,875
Other permits 55,000 55,000 79,152 24,152 70,453

289,050 289,050 286,144 {2,806) 272917
FINES AND FORFEITURES
Fines and forfeited bail 400,000 400,000 344,338 {55,662) 373,171
Parking violations 70,000 70,000 39,915 (30,085) 81,513
City code violations - - 4,300 4,300 17,810
Forfeitures of crime proceeds 25,000 25,000 - {25,000) 18,774

495,000 495,000 388,553 (106,447) 491,268
STATE AID
Per capita 4,848,886 4,606,442 4,555,771 (50,671) 4,848,886
Mortgage tax 250,000 250,000 177,204 (72,7986) 234,514
Court facilities 482,107 482107 292 419 {189,688) 508,509
Real property assessment - - - - 28,225
Stop D.WLLL - - 4,070 4,070 5,933
Geographical Information Systemns grant - - - - 32,870
Operation impactV - - - - 200,521
Operation Impact VI - - - - 142,218
Consolidated highway improvement pregram 230,000 230,000 164,945 (65,055) -
State highway maintenance 85,000 85,000 71,334 {13,666) 126,738



g9

Youth programs

Newburgh landing and waterfront park
Hudson-Fultoen-Champlain guadricentennial grant
NYSERDA rebate

Program for the aging

Dutch reform church stabilization grant
Environmental conservation

Trestle and Waterfront mural

Other

FEDERAL AID

21st Century grant

Anti-gun inifiative
Bulletproof vest grant
Summer food service

Child safely passenger seat
Newburgh Beacon Ferry
COPS grant

Other

MISCELLANEOUS

Reimbursement for direct and indirect expenses
Medicare part D reimbursement

Gifts and donations

Employee health contributions

Cther

TOTAL REVENUES

9,324 9,324 25,684 16,360 29,550

- - - - 116,999

- - - - 45,000

- - - - 62,400

. - 1,108 1,108 14,369

- - - - 25,000

- - - - 100,456

- - 74,875 74,875 -

- - 149,252 149,252 22,347
5,905,317 5,662,873 5,516,662 (146,211) 6,544,585
899,000 899,000 - (899,000) 911,390
- 2,500 - (2,500) 13,502

- - - - 4,956

- - - - 13,737

. - - - 8,831

- - - - 471,703

- - - - 58,365

- - 37,118 37,118 127,464
899,000 901,500 37,118 (864,382) 1,609,948
320,050 320,050 - (320,050) 26,097
95,000 95,000 115,679 20,679 117,103
10,000 14,000 17,896 3,896 35,497
- - 106,298 106,298 -
45,000 45,000 101 (44,899) 85
470,050 474,050 239,974 (234,076) 178,782
38,318,027 35,082,606 34,602,511 (480,095) 38,567,305

(Continued)
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES COMPARED TO BUDGET (Continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(With Comparafive Actuals for 2009)

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive 2009
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Insurance recoveries $ - % - 8 61,596 $ 61596 & 265,165
Premiums on obligations - - 211,472 211,472 264,540
Transfersin -
Bebt Service Fund - - 90,920 90,920 -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES - - 363,988 363,988 529,705
TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER

FINANCING SCURCES $ 38,318,027 $ 35,082,606 $ 34085499 $ (116,107) _$ 39,097,010
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES COMPARED TO BUDGET

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
(With Comparative Actuals for 2008)

GENERAL GOVERNMENT SUPPORT

City Council

Unified City Court

Mayor

City Manager

City Comptroller

Tax Collection

Assessment

Property Management

City Clerk

Corporation Counsel

Civil Service Commission

Engineering

Elections

Records management

Municipal buildings

Central printing

Data processing

Metropolitan commuter transportation
mobility tax

Costs of debt issuance

Special items:
Auditing services
Municipal association dues
Grant match
Capital equipment plan
Uncollectible property taxes
Miscellaneous - Consultants
Miscellaneous - Contractual
Judgments and claims
Contingency

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive 2009
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
64602 3 66,989 66,798 191 § 69,522
328,300 329,756 327,925 1,831 285,133
69,696 70,827 63,185 7,642 67,680
423,484 453,444 457,505 (4,061) 524,945
555,717 709,225 684,123 25,102 728,407
368,328 441,575 394,086 47,489 379,202
235,248 235,319 215,869 19,450 261,116
241,067 253,580 125,015 128,565 242,810
300,499 300,986 275,734 25,252 298,589
965,910 1,515,036 1,267,742 247,294 861,282
125,524 125,524 121,822 3,702 154,297
221,334 262,929 233,489 29,440 216,476
50,000 50,000 39,932 10,068 39,842
111,869 150,532 149,326 1,206 179,187
194,217 221,473 139,827 81,646 264,368
- 50,000 32,404 17,596 -
458,758 498,401 452,667 45,734 439,838
65,704 64,674 63,963 71 58,184
- 181,449 229,701 (48,252) 325,463
75,000 75,000 115,000 (40,000) 151,000
8,000 13,348 13,348 - 6,480
75,000 84,214 8,214 75,000 -
25,000 25,000 - 25,000 -
650,000 650,000 - 650,000 -
30,000 30,000 10,159 19,841 500
- 350 17,175 (16,825) 186,547
4,000 21,385 271,919 (250,534) 4,349,204
644,230 - - - -
6,292,587 6,881,016 5,777,928 1,103,088 10,090,172
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PUBLIC SAFETY

Police;

Police

Court fransportation

Child passenger safety

Operation Impact V

Youth Violence Reduction lll grant
Anti-gun inifiative

Traffic control

On-street parking

Public pound

Fire:
Fire
Code enforcement

TRANSPORTATION

Public works administration
Streets and bridges
Highway resurfacing
Garage

Police garage

Snow removal

Street lighting

Off-street parking
Newburgh ferry

13,333,936 14,338,556 13,399,112 939,444 13,959,057
267,985 267,985 203,608 64,377 330,455

- - - - 8,858

- - - - 202,906

- - - - 21,301

- - - - 11,836

252,318 252,363 216,447 35,916 230,606
110,129 110,144 108,745 1,399 96,449
45,480 56,0688 58,037 (1,969) 109,774
14,009,858 15,025,116 13,985,949 1,039,167 14,971,242
8,589,064 8,730,906 8,663,544 67,452 8,696,537
689,938 690,212 678,722 11,490 862,156
9,279,002 9,421,208 9,342,266 78,942 9,558,693
23,288,860 24,448,324 23,328,215 1,118,109 24,529,935
351,788 361,788 321,899 29,889 368,374
854,186 852,896 735,106 117,790 907,161
230,060 230,000 158,601 71,399 674
291,323 317,821 297,545 20,278 289,497
383,574 404,115 337,431 66,684 324,600
226,293 228,280 242,423 (14,143) 234,458
419,000 421,534 477,713 (56,179) 405,234
18,500 18,500 9,155 9,345 9,722
303,498 303,498 - 303,498 263,922
3,078,162 3,128,432 2,579,873 548,559 2,813,642

(Continued)
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES COMPARED TO BUDGET (Continued)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

{With Comparatjve Actuals for 2008)

Variance with
Final Budget
Criginal Final Positive 2009
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
ECONOMIC OPPCRTUNITY AND DEVELOPMENT
Community action neighborhood center $ 64,392 $ 64,892 $ 28,976 § 34,916 3 50,301
Contribution to IDA - - 576,891 (576,891) -
64,892 64,892 606,867 (541,975) 50,301
CULTURE AND RECREATION
Parks 656,959 703,965 566,633 137,332 805,461
Shade tree commission 7,500 7,500 1,331 6,169 11,045
Downing Park planning committee 31,950 31,950 32,052 {102) 42,185
Newburgh Waterfront Sirategic Redevelopment Plan - - - - 1,265
Newburgh Landing and Waterfront Park Improvements - - - - 404
Human services administration - - - - 236,041
Dutch reformed church 3,000 3,000 1,294 1,706 13,998
Recreation 281,026 246,366 203,639 42,727 348,843
Recreation - Summer food program - - - - 30,480
Riverfront faciiities 1,500 1,500 775 725 1,288
Delano-Hitch pool 171,593 172,289 112,632 59,657 129,508
Washington Lake/Masterson Park/Brown's Pond - - 125 (125) 5,539
Delanoc-Hitch park and stadium maintenance 88,678 88,678 20,667 68,011 75,730
Youth and family - 34,365 40,124 (5,759) 90,133
Summer playgrounds on wheels 19,557 19,557 16,907 2,650 21,340
21st century learning grant 899,000 903,046 - 903,046 1,031,331
Summer youth camp services 40,295 40,295 36,084 4211 39,777
Historian 3,087 3,130 3,275 {145) 2,655
Historic preservation and revitalization - - - - 18,184
Celebrations 20,500 24,500 17,553 6,947 116,225
Senior citizen recreation 19,250 19,250 12,605 6,645 19,038
Qther culture and recreation - - - - 14,355
2,243,895 2,299,391 1,065,696 1,233,695 3,054,825
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HOME AND COMMUNITY SERVICES

Zoning Board

Planning Board

Architectural review commission
Waterfront advisory commitiee

Arts and cultural commission

Sanitation

Planning and management development

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Hospitalization, medical and dental - Unallocated
Woaorkers' compensation benefits

Welfare fund

Employee assistance program

DEBT SERVICE

Principal:
Capital leases
Bonds
Energy performance contract

Interest:
Capital leases
Bonds
Bond anticipation notes
Tax anticipation notes
School District - Property taxes
Eneray performance contract

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

8,083 8,083 6,182 1,901 6,773
6,623 6,623 4,879 1,744 11,706
11,700 11,700 9,663 2,037 7,941
3,725 3,725 1,512 2,213 3,510

- - - - 822
2,376,954 - - - 2,268,388
516,074 315,767 303,124 12,643 292,121
2,923,159 345,898 325,360 20,538 2,591,261
90,598 90,598 97,209 6,611) 68,417
2,698,225 2,464 814 1,762,379 682,435 1,551,208
123,552 105,906 87,750 18,156 121,037
3,354 3,034 5,689 (2,655) 7,276
2,915,729 2,664,352 1,973,027 691,325 1,747,938
- 52,635 53,830 (1,195) 66,311

- 1,012,608 1,012,608 - -

- 86,433 86,433 - i

- 1,151,676 1,152,871 (1,195) 66,311

- - 9,030 {9,030) 4,867

- 1,012,037 997,129 14,908 -

- 667,698 666,355 1,343 -

- 211,301 210,677 624 -

- 350,000 119,531 230,469 166,764

. 65,330 65,330 - -

- 2,308,366 2,068,052 238,314 171,631

- 3,458,042 3,220,923 237,119 237,942
40,807,284 43,288,347 38,877,889 4,410,458 45,116,016

(Continued)



CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES COMPARED TO BUDGET (Continued)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
{With Comparative Actuals for 2009)

OTHER FINANCING USES

Transfers out:
Sanitation Fund
Grants Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Debt Service Fund

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES

Vartance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive 2009
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual
$ - - $ 376,954 § (376,964) & -
- - 200,361 (200,361) -
3,033,276 1,207,543 338,750 868,793 -
- - - - 2,183,072
3,033,276 1,207,543 916,065 291,478 2,183,072
$ 43,840,560 44495890 § 38,793,954 § 4701936 $ 47,299,088




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ASSETS
Cash - Demand deposits
Receivables:
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND DEFICIT

Liabilities;
Accounts payable
Retainages payable
Bond anticipation notes payable
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Deficit -
Urnreserved and undesignated

Total Liabilities and Fund Deficit

72

2010 2009
$ 6,891,736 § 18,517,540
2,677,129 191,229
- 330,877
2,677,129 521,906
$ 9,568,865 $ 19,039,446
$ 1517325 § 886,140
289,793 429,095
12,877,333 15,217,088
4,288,036 10,018,103
18,472,487 26,550,426
(8,903,622) (7,510,980)
$ 9,668,865 § 19,039,446




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Revenues:
Use of money and property
State aid
Federzl aid
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues
Expenditures - Capital outlay
Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources:
‘Capital lease issued
Transfers in
Total Other Financing Sources
Net Change In Fund Balance

Fund Deficit - Beginning of Year

Fund Deficit - End of Year

73

2010 2009

$ 191,591 2,842
1,373,372 240,850
3,702,494 198

292 45,000

5,267,749 288,888
7,132,153 4,548,277
(1,864,404) (4,259,389)
133,011 .
338,751 88,236
471,762 88,236
(1,392,642) (4,171,153)
(7,510,980) (3,339,827)

$  (8,903,622) (7,510,980)




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ASSETS

Cash - Demand deposits

Receivables:
Accounts
Due from other governmenis
Loans receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible
amounts of $170,711 in 2010 and 2009
Due from component unit - Industrial Development Agency
Due from other funds

Prepaid Expenditures

Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Pue to other funds
Deferred revenues
Total Liabilities
Fund Batance:
Reserved for prepaid expenditures
Resserved for long-term receivables
Unreserved and undesignated
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

74

2010 2009
2,417,038 $ 3,064,064
- 124
1,154,972 630,111
562,427 598,483
207,329 606,210
311,765 -
2,236,493 1,834,928
3,978 -
4657509 § 4888992
18,5614 § 93,812
- 911,171
1,698,613 1,086,601
1,717,127 2,091,684
3,978 : -
207,329 806,210
2,729,075 2,191,198
2,940,382 2,797,408
4,657,509 § 4,888,992




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

2010
Variance with
Final Budgst
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
Revenues:
Departmental income $ - 3 - $ 82954 % 82,954
Use of money and property - - 9,300 9,300
State aid - - - -
" Federal aid 833,817 1,059,449 481,751 (577,698)
Miscellaneous - - 493,288 493,288
Total Revenues 833,817 4,059,449 1,067,293 7,844
Expenditures:
Current:
Hoeme and community services 833,817 1,059,448 506,231 553,218
Employee benefits - - - -
Debt service:
Principal - - 310,000 {310,000)
Interest - - 108,088 {108,088)
Total Expenditures 833,817 1,069,449 924 319 135,130
Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures - - 142,974 142,974
Other Financing Uses -
Transfers out - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance - - 142,974 142,974
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year - - 2,797,408 2,797,408

Fund Balance - End of Year 3 - $ - % 2940382 $ 2940382
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2009

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
- 3 - 8 1,570,686 1,570,686
- - 443,854 443,854
- - 111,812 111,812
830,000 830,000 304,702 (435,298)
- - 50 50
830,000 830,000 2,521,204 1,681,204
830,000 830,000 1,007,078 (177,078)
- - 137,497 (137,497)
- - 220,000 {(220,000)
- - 121,166 (121,156)
830,000 830,000 1,485,731 (655,731)
- - 1,035,473 1,035,473
- - (88,236) (88,236)
- - 947,237 947,237
- - 1,850,171 1,850,171
- 3 - 3 2,797,408 2,797,408
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010

(With Comparative Totals for 2009)

Total Non-Major

Special Governmental Funds
Purpose Grants ,
Fund Fund 2010 2009
ASSETS
Cash and Equivalents $ 27141 $ 441,234 §$ 468,375 $ 34,395
Due from Other Funds 8,213 - 8,213 129,886
Due from Other Governments - 681,555 681,555 -
Prepaid Expenditures - 7,142 7,142 -
Total Assets $ 35354 $ 1,129,931 $ 1,165285 § 164,281
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - $ 255130 % 255130 % -
Due to ather governments - 237,603 237,603 -
Due to other funds - 580,840 560,640 38,066
Deferred revenues - 76,558 76,558 -
TFotal Liabilities - 1,129,931 1,129,931 38,066
Fund Balances (Deficits):
Reserved for prepaid expenditures - 7,142 7,142 -
Reservad for debt service - - - 90,820
Reserved for frusts 35,354 - 35,354 34,395
Unreserved and undesignated - (7.142) {7,142) -
Total Fund Balances 35,354 - 35,354 125,315
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 35354 $§ 1,129,931 §$ 1,165285 § 164,281
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
(With Comparative Totals for 2009)

Revenues:
Use of money and property
State aid
Federal aid
Miscellaneous

Total Revenuas

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year

Fund Balances - End of Year

Special Debt
Purpose Service Grants
Fund Fund Fund
$ 56 - 682
- - 326,973
- - 1,647,567
28,662 - 8,422
28,718 - 1,083,644
- - 990,117
- - 288,139
27,769 - 853,783
- - 51,965
27,759 - 2,184,004
959 - {200,360)
- 200,360
(80,920) -
- (90,920) 200,380
959 {90,920) -
34,395 90,920 -

$ 35354
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Total Non-Major
Governmental Funds

2010 2009

$ 738§ 23
326,973 -
1,647,567 -
37,084 47,941
2,012,362 47,964
990,117 -
288,139 .
881,542 32,719
51,965 .

. 1,062,923

- 1,120,149

2,211,763 2,215,791
(199,401) (2,167,827)
200,360 2,183,072
(90,920) -
109,440 2,183,072
(89,961) 15,245
125315 110,070

$ 35354. $ 125,315
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ASSETS
" Cash - Demand deposits
Due from Other Funds
Total Assets
FUND BALANCE

Reserved for Trusts
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2010 2009
27,141 34,395
8,213 -
35,354 34,385
35,354 34,395




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Revenues:
Use of money and property
Miscellangous
Total Revenues
Expenditures - Current - Culture and recreation
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

&1

2010 2009
$ - 56 23
28,662 47,941
28,718 47,964
27,759 32,719
959 15,245
34,395 19,150
$ 35,354 34,395




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

DEBT SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

2010 2008
ASSETS
Due from Other Funds 3 - & 129,888
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities - Due to other funds $ - 8 38,966
Fund Balance - Reserved for debt service ' - 90,920

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ - % 129,886
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

DEBT SERVICE FUND

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Revenues - Use of money
and property

Expenditures -
Debt service:
" Principal:
Serial bonds
Energy performance coniract

interest;
Serial bonds
Energy performance contract
Bond anticipation notes

Total Expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues
Cver Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

2010
Variance with
Final Budget
Qriginal Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
- - 3 - -
1,012,608 - - -
86,433 - - .
1,099,041 - - -
1,376,280 - - -
65,330 - “ -
492,625 - - .
1,834,235 - - -
3,033,276 - - -
(3,033,276) - - -
3,033,276 - - -
- - (90,920) (90,920)
3,033,276 - {90,920) (90,920)
. - (90,920) (90,920)
- - 90,920 90,920
. -3 - .
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2009

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
199,564 § 199,564 § - 8 (199,564)
987,223 987,223 087,223 -
92,512 92,512 75,700 16,812
1,079,735 1,079,735 1,062,923 16,812
1,051,394 1,051,384 1,051,394 -
51,942 51,042 68,755 {16,813)
1,103,336 1,103,336 1,120,149 {16,813)
2,183,071 2,183,071 2,183,072 (1)
(1,983,507 (1,983,507) (2,183,072} {198,565)
1,983,507 1,983,507 2,183,072 199,565
1,983,507 1,983,507 2,183,072 199,565
- - 90,920 90,920

.8 -3 90,920 $ 90,920
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

GRANTS FUND
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010

ASSETS
Cash - Demand deposits
Due from Other Governments, net
Prepaid Expenditures

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liahilities:
Accounts payahle
Due to other governments
Due to other funds
Deferred revenues

Total Liabilities
Fund Balance (Dsficit):
Reserved for prepaid expenditures
Unreserved and undesignated

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabllities and Fund Balance
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$ 441,234
681,555
7,142

$ 1,129,931

$ 255,130
237,603
560,640

76,558

1,129,931

7,142
(7,142)

$ 1,129,931




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

GRANTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Revenues:
Usse of money and property
State aid
Federal aid
Miscellanecus

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current;
Public safety
Transportation
Culfure and recreation
Home and community services
Total Expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expendilures

Other Financing Sources -
Transfers in
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Variance with

Final Budget
Criginal Final Posilive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
- % - $ 682 % 682
25,700 675,450 326,973 (348,47T7)
1,334,775 3,549,509 1,647,567 (1,902,032)
5,722 20,136 8,422 (11,714)
1,366,197 4245 185 1,983,644 (2,261,541)
347,918 2,290,209 990,117 1,300,092
1,031,000 1,031,000 288,139 742,861
- 899,772 853,783 45,089
- 229,714 51,965 177,749
1,378,918 4,450,695 2,184,004 2,268,691
(12,721) (205,510) (200,3860) 5,150
12,721 205,510 200,360 (5,150)
- 3 - 3 - 38 -
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash:
Demand deposits
Restricted cash
Petty cash

Recelvables:
Accotints
Due from other governments
Due from other funds

Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Capital assels:
Land
Consfruction-in-progress
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than bulldings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
l.ess - Accumulated depreciation

Totat Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreclation

Total Assels

LIABILITIES

Current Liabllities:
Accounts payable
Retalnages payable
Accrued interest payable
Due to other funds
Bond anticipation notes payabie
Current maturities of bonds payable
Current maturities of joans payable
Currant portion of compansated absences

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds payable, less current maturities
Loans payable, less current maturities
Compensated absences, less current portion
Other post employment benefit obligations payable

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt
Restricted for Capital improvements
Unrestricted (Deficlt)

Total Net Assets
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2010 2008
$ 2,251,719 $ 936,678
- 1,330,265

500 500
2,252,219 2,267,443
2,141,490 1,512,144
300,000 366,720
424,881 1,739,685
2,866,371 3,618,449
34,910 147
5,153,500 5,886,039
7,248,449 7,248,449
6,159,091 5,436,088
935,688 935,688
494,164 404,164
1,890,571 1,890,571
15,161,219 14,043,343
(9,633,271) {9,300,065)
22,165,911 21,558,236
27,319,411 27,444,275
190,023 525,624

- 94,381

87,591 91,937

- 2,673,933
2,276,229 .
230,696 226,999
321,657 319,602
25,000 34,064
3,131,198 3,966,630
4,466,304 4,696,009
7,585,778 7,907,435
225,237 306,572
1,173,092 850,434
13,450,411 13,761,440
16,581,607 17,728,070
9,919,869 9,577,595
- 1,830,264
817,935 (1,691,654)

$ 10,737,804 $ 9,716,205




CiTY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN

NET ASSETS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Operating Revenues:
Metered sales
Penaity income
Miscellansous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses;
Personal services
Depreciation
Supplies
Utllities
Insurance
Contractual
Fees for services
Empioyee bensfits

Total Operating Expenses
Income (Loss) from Operations
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses).
State aid
Interest income
Interest expense
Total Non-Operating Expenses
Income (Loss) Before Transfers
Transfers In
Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Net Assets - End of Year
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2010 2009
$ 5078499 $§ 3,175,526
97,445 93,710
36,483 38,077
5,212,427 3,307,313
1,129,183 1,322,220
333,208 344,400
305,224 341,657
154,001 183,604
346,182 187,780
502,485 457,805
434,804 997,216
922,179 1,016,902
4,127,264 4,861,683
1,085,163 {1,544,270)
4,428 366,720
3,151 28,215
(230,691) (238,221)
(223,112) 156,644
862,051 (1,387,626)
159,548 278,354
1,021,509 (1,109,272)
9,716,205 10,825,477
$ 10,737,804 § 9,716,205




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Cash Flows From Operating Aclivities:
Cash received from metered sales and penalties
Cash payments for goods and services
Cash payments to employees

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities

- Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
State aid

Due from other funds

Transfers in

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Capltal and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from debt
Principal paid on debt
Interest paid on debt

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Capital
and Related Financing Aclivities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Sale of restricied investmenis
Interest income

MNet Cash Provided by Investing Activities
Net Decrease in Cash

Cash - Beginning of Year
Cash - End of Year

Reconciliation of Income (Loss) from Operations to Net Cash
Provided by (Used in} Operating Actlvities:
inhcome (foss) from operations
Adjusiments to reconcile income (loss) from operations to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts recsivable
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Retainages payable
Due to other funds
Compensated absances
Other post employment benefit obligations payable

Net Cash Provided by (Usad in) Operating Activities

89

2010 2009

4649,801 $ 2,860,443
(4,881,374) 18,928
(1,819,103) (1,766,327)
(2,050,676) 1,113,044
4,428 366,720
1,314,704 (805,981)
159,548 278,354
1,478,680 (160,907)
(940,881) (2,767,526)
2,276,229 .
(546,690) (550,096)
(235,037) (242,946)
553,621 (3,560,568)

- 682,089

3,151 28,215
3,151 711,204
(15,224) (1,897,227)
2,267 443 4,184,670
22522190 $ 2,267,443
1,085,163 $  (1,544,270)
333,206 344,400
(629,346) (80,150)
66,720 (366,720)
(34,763) 23,835
(335,601) (387,575)
(94,381) 94,381
(2,673,933) 2,590,433
(90,399) (45,027)
322,658 433,737
(2,050,676) $ 1,113,044




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

ENTERPRISE FUND - SEWER FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash -
Demand deposits
Receivables:
Accounts

Due from other governments
Due from other funds

Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Capital assets:
Land
Construction-in-progress
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Less - Accumulated deprectation

Total Capltal Assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Assets
LIABILITIES

Current Liablitles:
Accounts payable
Retalnages payable
Accrued interest payabie
Due to other funds
Deferred revenues
Bond anticipation notes payable
Current maturities of bonds payable
Current portion of compensated absences

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabllitfes;
Bonds payable, less current maturities
Compensated absences, less current portion
Other post employment benefit obligations payable

Total Noncurrent Liakilities
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt
Restricted for capital improvements
Unrestricted

Total Netf Assels
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2010 2009
6,525,262 § 1,323,082
2,038,854 1,606,754
742,426 530,877
1,630,105 7,648,475
4,611,385 9,786,106
12,588 47
11,149,235 11,109,235
3,001,193 3,001,193
3,449,385 4,900,294
451,554 451,554
14,858 11,558
778,235 734,885
24,955,498 23,402,589
(10,377,921) (9,900,424)
22,269,502 22,604,649
33,418,737 33,710,884
521,937 998,389

- 157,725

13,011 14,922

: - 673,670
563,890 595,140
5,326,836 5,011,000
115,394 115,394
8,800 4,481
6,547,868 7,670,721
601,008 716,400
61,231 40,332
324,843 212,342
987,080 969,074
7,534,948 8,539,795
18,590,933 19,382,908
- . 654,802
7,292,856 5,133,379
25,883,789 § 25,171,089




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

ENTERPRISE FUND - SEWER FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN

NET ASSETS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2008

Operating Revenues:
Metered sales
Penaity income
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Qperating Expenses:;

- Personal services
Depreciation
Supplies and materials
Utilities
Insurance
Contractual
Fees for services
Employee benefits

Total Operating Expenses
Income (Loss) from Operations
Non-Operating Revenuss (Expenses):
Interest income
Interest expense
Total Non-Operating Expenses
Income (Loss) Before Transfers
Transfers Out

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Net Assets - End of Year
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2010 2008
$ 5091496 § 3,835752
91,395 890,473
253,171 210,961
5,436,062 4,137,186
410,183 349,786
477,497 436,475
24,430 20,874
174,441 163,250
325,818 106,874
2,010,792 1,956,018
676,809 789,603
285,613 321,268
4,385,583 4,144,148
1,080,479 (6,962)
69,304 3,053
(237,535) (43,978)
(178,231) (40,925)
872,248 (47,887)
(159,548) (278,354)
712,700 (326,241)
25,171,089 25,497,330
$ 25883789 § 25,171,089




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

ENTERPRISE FUND - SEWER FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2008

2010 2009
Cash Fiows From Operating Activities:
Cash recelved from metered sales, penaities and other $ 4,087,493 § 4,373,518
Cash payments for goods and services (3,859,008) (3,118,495)
Cash payments to employees {560,077) {567,285)
Net Cash Provided by {(Used In} Operating Activities {331,592) 687,738
Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Due from other funds 5,818,370 (7,460,211)
Transfers out (159,548) (278,354)
Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Non-Capital Financing Activities 5,658,822 {7,738,565)
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Fihancing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (145,350) (3,046,378)
Proceeds from debt 315,836 5,011,000
Principal paid on debt (115,304) {133,508)
Interest paid on debt (239,446) (46,183)
Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Capital
and Related Financing Activities {184,354} 1,784,951
Cash Flows From Investing Activilies -
Interestincome 59,304 3,053
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 5,202,180 (5,262,822)
Cash - Beginning of Year 1,323,082 6,585,904
Cash - End of Year $ 6,525262 § 1,323,082

Reconciliation of Income (Loss) from Operations to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activilies:
income (loss) from operations $ 1,050,479 § (6,962
Adjustments io reconcite income (loss) from operations to net cash
provided by operating actlvities:

Depreciation 477,497 436,475

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounis recelvable (432,100) (38,877)
Pue from other governmenis (211,549) (335,792)
Prepaid expenses {12,541) 7,087
Accounts payable (476,452) (135,866)
Retainages payable (157,725) 46,903
Bue to other funds (673,670) 642,252
Deferred revenues (31,250) (31,250)
Compensated absences 23,218 (5,647)
Other post employment benefit obligations payable 112,501 109,416

Net Cash Provided by Operating Actlvities $ (331,582) § 687,739
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CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

ENTERPRISE FUND - SANITATION FUND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash -
Demand deposits

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets:
Machinery and equipment
Less - Accumulated depreciation

Total Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Assets
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities;
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Current portion of compensated absences

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences, less current portion
Other post employment benefit obligations payable

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets
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$

623,169

907,705

29,328

1,560,202

566,062
(538,086)

27,976

1,688,178

116,195
926,463
8,700

1,051,368

78,682
260,454

339,136

1,390,494

27,976
169,708

$

197,684




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

ENTERPRISE FUND -SANITATION FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN

NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Operating Revenues:
Fees
Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses:
Personal services
Depreciation
Supplies and materials
Contractual
Employee benefits
Total Operating Expenses
Loss from Operations

Non-Operating Revenues -
Inferest income

Loss Before Transfers
Transfers In
Change in Net Assets

Net Assefs - Beginning of Year

Net Assets - End of Year

94

$

2,423,592
58,588

2,482,180

940,827
11,990
87,067

787,008

862,221

2,689,203

(207,023)

27,753

(179,270)

376,954

197,684

$

197,684




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

ENTERPRISE FUND - SANITATION FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Cash received from feas from cusiomers $ 1,674,475
Cash payments for goods and services (787,298)
Cash payments to employees (1,455,212)
Advances received from other funds 026,463
Net Cash Provided by Cperating Activities 258,428
Cash Flows From Nen-Capital Financing Activities -
Transfers in 376,854
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities -
Acquisition of capital assets (39,966)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities -
Interest income 27,753
Net Increase in Cash 623,169

Cash - Beginning of Year -

Cash - End of Year $ 623,169

Reconciliation of Income from Operations to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
income from operations $ (207,023)
Adjustments to reconcile income from operations to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 11,990

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: -
Accounts receivable (907,7085)
Prepaid expenses (29,328)
Accounts payable 116,195
Due to other funds $26,463
Compensated absences 87,382
Other post employment benefit obligations payable 260,454

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 258,428

96
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CITY OF NEWBURGH TABLE-1
SUMMARY OF CONSTITUTIONAL TAX AND DEBT LIMIT
2010 AND 2009
State
Assessment Tax Roll Assessed Equalization Full
Year Year End Value Rate Valuation
2009 12/31/2010 $1,338,378,711 100% 1,336,378,711
2008 12/31/2009 1,602,227,884 100% 1,602,227,884
2007 12/31/2008 287,627,708 0.20% 1,438,138,540
2006 12/31/2007 307,162,652 0.24% 1,279,308,329
2005 12/31/2006 289,267,812 0.20% 997 475,214
£.653,528,678
2010 2009
Total Average Full Valuation 1,330,705,736 1,214,648,555
Tax Limit - 2% of Average Full Value 26,614,115 24,292 971
Debt Limit - 7% of Average Full Value (A) 93,149,401 85,025,399
HECONSTHITUTIONAEDEBTINCURRING
2010 2009
Indebtedness:
Bonds $ 25,320,000 $ 25,675,000
Bond Anticipation Notes § 27.936,148 § 22,326,398
Total Indebtedness (B) $ 53,256,148 $ 49,001,398
Deductions:
Appropriations for Debt Retirement 4,161,136 3,033,278
Debt Created to provide for Water:
Bonds - Net of Appropriations 4,168,991 4,923,998
Total Deductions (C) 8,331,127 7,957,276
Net indebtedness (B less C) (D) 44,925,021 41,044,122
Margin of Debt Incurring Capacity
(A less D) (E) $ 48,224,380 $ 43,981,277
Percentage of Debt Confracting Capacity / Remaining (E divided by A) 51.8% 51.7%

{1) Source: City's Comptroller's Office
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Total Full Valuation
Five Year Avg. Full Value

2% Five Year Avg. Full Value
Exclusions from Debt Limnit:
A, Debt Service

1. Water Bonds & Notes -
Principal
Interest

2. Bonds & Notes Issued After

1/1/50 for Revenue

Producing Imps. or Services
Sewer Fund -
Principal
Interest
Sub-Total

Less Revenues Designated

Net Exclusion for Debt for
Revenue Producing Service

3. All Cther Bonds & Notes
Principal
Interest

TOTAL EXCLUSIONS FOR DEBT SERVICE
Less Revenue & Reserves Applied
NET DEBT SERVICE
B. Other Exclusions
Appropriations for Capital
Revenue & Reserves Applied

TOTAL EXCLUSIONS

Maximurm Taxing Power

Tax Levy-General City Purposes
CONSTITUTIONAL TAX MARGIN

Percentage of Tax Margin to be Utilized

CITY OF NEWBURGH
CONSTITUTIONAL TAX MARGIN
2010 AND 2009

Bonds

546,691
230,102

115,394
38,704

1,012,608
997,129

2010

$ 6,653,528,678
1,330,705,736

28,614,115

776,793

154,088
(154,008)

776,793

2,008,737
$ 2,786,530

$ 2,786,530

$ 2,786,530

29,400,645

13,203,274

$ 16,197,371
51.90%

Bonds

550,096
242,946

133,508
46,162

987,223
1,051,394

TABLE -2

2009

$ 6073242773
1,214,648,555

24,202,971

793,042

178,670
(179,670)

793,042

2,038,617

$ 2,831,659
$ 2,831,659
674,886

(347,531)

$ 3,159,014

27,451,985

12,348,739

$ 15,103,246
55.02%
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CITY OF NEWBURGH TABLE -3
AMORTIZATION OF BOND PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST

BY FUND AND BY YEAR
2010
PRINCIPAL ] INTEREST | Principal
YEAR , Interest
DUE GENERAL WATER SEWER TOTAL GENERAL WATER SEWER TOTAL Combined
2011 $ 1,043,911 $ 552,353 $115,394 $ 1,711,658 $ 942168 $ 217,881 $ 34,136 $ 1,194,185 $ 2,905,843
2012 960,214 563,015 115,394 1,638,623 886,510 205,814 28,558 1,120,882 2,759,505
2013 1,002,441 577,753 115,394 1,695,588 837,502 193,662 22,970 1,054,134 2,749,722
2014 899 177 593,156 110,219 1,702,552 786,778 180,799 17,338 984,915 2,687,467
2015 974,044 575,473 30,000 1,579,517 737,042 167,683 12,028 918,753 2,496,270
2016 1,014,423 592,059 30,000 1,636,482 688,341 155,490 10,528 854,359 2,490,841
2017 1,050,726 592,721 30,000 1,673,447 637,852 142,576 9,028 789,256 2,462,703
2018 1,091,108 604,307 25,000 1,720,412 584,837 129,665 7,528 722,030 2,442 442
2019 1,130,560 611,817 25,000 1,767,377 529,760 116,221 6,278 652,259 2,419,636
2020 690,000 509,341 25,000 1,224,341 483,534 105,176 5,028 593,738 1,818,079
2021 710,000 511,306 25,000 1,246,306 455 448 98,376 4,028 557,850 1,804,156
2022 685,000 513,271 25,000 1,223,271 425,590 91,363 2,997 519,950 1,743,221
2023 705,000 510,236 20,000 1,235,236 396,721 84,351 1,966 483,038 1,718,274
2024 515,000 514,201 3,000 1,032,201 366,196 77,338 1,116 444,650 1,476,851
2025 535,000 516,166 3,000 1,054,166 344,309 70,241 988 415,538 1,469,704
2026 560,000 518,131 3,000 1,081,131 320,963 63,060 859 384,882 1,466,013
2027 500,000 525,096 3,000 1,028,096 296,463 55,754 728 352,845 1,381,041
2028 525,000 528,061 2,000 1,055,061 273,963 48,188 5986 322,745 1,377,806
2029 550,000 525,026 2,000 1,077,026 . 250,338 40,401 . 506 291,245 1,368,271
2030 575,000 531,991 2,000 1,108,991 225,588 32,841 416 258,845 1,367,836
2031 605,000 533,956 2,000 1,140,956 198,994 24,883 324 224 201 1,365,157
2032 630,000 368,000 2,000 1,000,000 171,013 16,881 231 188,125 1,188,125
2033 665,000 387,000 3,000 1,035,000 141,088 8,418 139 149,645 1,184,645
2034 695,000 185,000 - 880,000 109,500 - - 102,500 989,500
2035 730,000 185,000 - 915,000 74,750 - - 74,750 989,750
2036 765,000 - - 765,000 38,250 - - 38,250 803,250

TOTALS $19,906,601 $12,604436  $716,401 $33,227,438  $11,203,296 $2,327,060 $168,314  $13,698,670 $46,926,108

C-3
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CITY OF NEWBURGH TABLE - 4
PERFORMANCE OF THE GOVERNMENT'S ENTERPRISE OPERATIONS*
IN MEETING OUTSTANDING BONDED DEBT SERVICE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS Total
Water/Sewer
Total Enterprise Ratio of
Water/Sewer Operations Debt Service To
Fiscal Debt Expenditures Enterprise Operations
Year Principal Interest " Service Budgeted Expenditures {Percent)
2010 5 342,393 $ 269,808 $ 612,199 $ 10,166,462 6.02%
2009 683,604 289,108 972,712 10,932,710 8.90%
2008 604,468 84,553 689,021 10,698,771 6.44%
2007 589,832 96,748 686,580 10,264,836 6.69%
2006 597,563 108,376 706,938 8,826,093 7.19%
2005 597,593 134,587 732,180 9,411,778 7.78%
2004 601,234 159,848 761,082 9,134,883 8.33%
2003 600,085 185,052 785,117 8,341,714 9.41%
2002 606,817 211,095 818,012 8,653,471 9.45%
2001 482,975 239,534 722,509 8,356,682 8.65%

*Government's enterprise operation is the combination of water and sewer debts and expenditures.

C-4
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CITY OF NEWBURGH

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

CHARGES
FISCAL. FOR
YEAR TOTAL TAXES SERVICES

2010 $ 58,887,980 § 24,156,491 $ 15427762

2009 47,562,432 22,473,351 13,166,414
2008 44,134,401 21,138,814 12,416,079
2007 39,005,228 24,343,476 5,163,370
2006 36,978,025 22732,862 5,074,238
2005 36,475,982 23,971,709 4,770,471
2004 30,181,207 20,829,040 3,901,163
2003 30,753,557 20,980,290 3,761,730
2002 27,419,430 18,484,039 3,647,215
2001 26,308,078 16,897,730 3,625,650

(1) 2009 includes Marina Ops Settlement of $1.9 million

C-5

STATE AND
FEDERAL AID

$ 13,727,138
9,569,238
9,685,566
8,353,315
7,704,463
5,418,343
4,345,170
4,525,868
4,686,065

4,502,947

$

INTEREST
ON

INVESTMENTS

319,291

37,719
363,254
493,369
359,589
356,371
141,462
188,305
140,762

475,345

$

TABLE -5

OTHER
REVENUES

(1)

5,257,298
2,315,710
921,500
651,628
1,106,868
959,088
964,372
1,297,364
461,349

806,406
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CITY OF NEWBURGH

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Percent

Fiscal Totat Current Tax of Levy
Year Tax Levy Collections Collected
2010 13,203,274 $ 10,982,741 83.2 %
2009 12,348,739 10,772,596 872 %
2008 12,004,562 9,040,588 753 %
2007 12,863,702 12,731,486 99.0 %
20086 12,637,518 12,703,456 100.5 %
2005 11,974,683 12,360,866 103.2 %
2004 11,032,444 11,199,058 1015 %
2003 9,812,444 11,789,542 1202 %
2002 9,082,954 9,039,727 99.7 %
2001 8,925,455 10,727,254 1202 %

Note: Only the taxes levied by the City are included in this table.

Source: City Comptroller's Office records.

TABLE -6
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CITY OF NEWBURGH
ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST SIX YEARS
Ratio of Total
Assessed Value
Estimated To Total

Assessment Tax Assessed Actual Estimated

Year Year Value Value Actual Value (2}

2009 12/31/2010 $ 1,336,378,711 3 1,336,378,711 100

2008 12/31/2009 1,602,227,884 1,602,227.884 100

2007 12/31/2008 288,534,799 1,442 673,895 0.20

2008 12/31/2007 288,572,699 1,202,386,246 '0.24

2005 12/31/2006 289,267,812 997 475,214 0.28

2004 12/31/2005 289 967,802 828,479,434 0.35

Notes:

(1) Personal property is omitted as it is not taxable in New York State.
(2) The ratio of total assessed value to total estimated actual value is equal to the State Equalization rate.

Source: City Assessment Rolls.

C-7

TABLE -7

Annual
Percent
Increase
{Decrease)
in Value
-16.4%
11.1%
20.0%
20.5%

20.4%



CITY OF NEWBURGH

LAST EIGHT YEARS

EMPIRE PLAN

€0}

January 1, 2010
January 1, 2009
January 1, 2008
January 1, 2007
January 1, 2006
January 1, 2005

January 1, 2004

HEALTH INSURANCE - MONTHLY PREMIUMS FOR INDIVIDUAL FAMILY COVERAGE WITH INCREASE PERCENTAGE COST TABLE -8
Prime Rates Mediprime Rates
Individual Increase % Family Increase % Individual Increase % Family 1 Increase % Family2 Increase %
$ 612.34 2.3% $ 1,330.93 3.8% $ 367.37 2.3% $ 1,085.94 4.1% $ 840.98 4.7%
598.58 1.0% 1,282.17 1.9% 350.22 -0.3% 1,042.81 1.6% 803.45 1.1%
592.38 4.9% 1,258.78 5.1% 360.41 8.2% 1,026.86 6.3% 794.94 8.2%
564.84 5.6% 1,198.07 6.4% 333.18 -1.68% 986.44 3.3% 734.81 -1.28%
529.76 10.7% 1,126.19 11.1% 338.88 2.1% 835.32 7.9% 744.45 3.3%
478.48 2.7% 1,013.68 3.7% 331.93 -9.4% 867.09 -1.3% 720.53 -7.5%
485.86 21.0% 977.92 20.5% 366.33 23.1% 878.40 21.3% 778.87 22.3%
384.89 11.7% 811.41 12.1% 2897.50 17.2% 724.05 14.4% 636.67 17.4%

January 1, 2003

C-8



CITY OF NEWBURGH TABLE -9
NEGOTIATED WAGE SETTLEMENTS FOR CITY UNIONS
AND NON-BARGAINING GROUP

LAST TEN YEARS
Police Superior Officers Non-

Year Police Benevolent Association Sergeant Lieutenant Fire - LA.F.F. CSEA Bargaining  Year
2010 il . > 1M1 -12/31 0% 4% -5% 2010
2009 b - i M -12131 2% $1,980 4% 2009

11 - 630 2%
2008 101 - 12/31 2.5% 10/1-12/31  $1,999 10M - 12431 $2,199 101 - 1231 $2,000 + 2% 4% 4% 2008
2008 11 -8/30 2% 1M1-9/30 83,271 11 -9/30 $3,598 111 - 9130 2%
2007 M - 12131 2% 7M-12/31  $1,504 711 -12/31 $1,654 1047 - 121131 $1,000 +2% 4% 4-8% 2007
2§0’7 111 - 6130 2% 1/1-6/30 3111 1/1 - 6/30 3,423 11 -10/8 2%
2;06 7HM - 1231 2.25% 71 -12/31 1,586 7M1 -12/31 1,744 10M - 12/31 $750 4% 4% 2006
2006 1M1 -6/30 1.25% 111 - 6/30 3,601 111 - 6130 6,737 1M1 - 8/30 1%
2005 4.5% $2,700 $2,859 4% 3% 3% 2005
2004 $2,000 + 4% 4% - 5% 4% $2,200 4% 2004
2003 - 2% 2% 0% 0% - 2008
2002 - $7,500 2%* 4% 4% 2002
2001 3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 2001

* Dollars increased to certain senior positions.
** Contracts in negotiation,

Source: Unions' Contracts

c9
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CiTY OF NEWBURGH TABLE - 10
ADCPTED BUDGET COMPARISONS
LAST TEN YEARS
Increase
Sanitation Total {Decrease)
Year General Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund Fund (1) Appropriations Amount Change %
2010 $ 46,784,484 $ 5,254,548 $ 4911914 $ 2,399,319 $ 59,350,765 $ 3,744,875 8.7%
2009 44,673,180 5,566,273 5,366,437 n/a 55,605,890 3,041,177 5.8
2008 41,865,042 5,108,341 5,592,430 n/a 52,564,713 2,724,478 55
2007 39,408,236 5,099,688 5,332,311 nfa 49,840,235 (892,655) (1.79)
2006 40,906,797 5,071,849 4,754,244 n/a 50,732,890 6,332,739 14.26
2005 34,988,373 4,913,037 4,498,741 n/a 44,400,151 2,826,296 6.8
2004 32,221,060 4,838,375 4,516,420 n/a 41,573,855 4,477,567 12.1
2003 28,754,574 4,079,164 4,262,550 n/a 37,096,288 2,588,668 7.5
2002 25,854,149 3,882,679 4,770,792 n/a 34,507,620 1,020,761 3.1
2001 25,130,177 3,665,880 4,690,802 n/a 33,486,859 1,715,460 5.4
Notes:

(1) Sanitation operations removed from General Fund into new proprietary fund effective 1-1-10,

(2) Source: Each year's respective budget documents.

C-10



INTERNET REPORT {D: 413320 VERSION: 1 9/27/2011 3:48:59 PM
OMB No. 0348-0057

. .5, DEPT. OF COMM.— Econ, and Stet. Admin— U8, CENSUS BUREAU
/{?1?1230'): SAC ACTING AS COLLECTING AGENT FOR

Data Collection Form for Reporting on OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
AUDITS OF STATES, LOCAL GOVERNMENTS, AND NON- PROF!T ORGANIZATIONS
for Flscal Year Ending Dates in 2010, 2011, or 2012

» Compiete this form, as required by OMB Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations."

PART | GENERAL INFORMATION {To be completed by auditee, except for Items 6, 7, and 8)
1. Fiscal period ending date for this submission 2. Type of Circular A-133 audit | 3. Audit period coverad
“MonihDay  Year | 1 [XI Single audit 1 X Annual 3 10Other — Months
12/ 31 [ 2010 2 Program-specific audit 21 Biennial
4. Auditee ldentification Numbers
a. Primary Employer Identification Number (EIN} d. Dala Universal Numbering System (DUNS) Number
572) N | 2]9 9l6|-l6lals|-|4lals]s '
covgred in this report? 1 Yes 2[X No e. Are multiple DUNS covered in this report? 1{_ ] ves 2l No
=" " complete Part 1, liem 4c f. If Part |, tem 4e = "Yes," complele Part [, item 4f
tion heet on Pagﬁi\f on the continuation sheet on Page 4.
5. AUDITEE INFOR ATION 6. PRIMARY AUDITOR INFORMATION
(To be completed by auditor)
a. Audlie me {a. Primary audilor name
CITY OF WSUR H. NY Q'CCONNOR DAVIES MUNNS & DOBBINS, LLP
b. Audlte ess ANumbe andW b. Primary auditor address (Numbor and sireet)
a3 BROADWAY 500 MAMARONECK AVENUE, SUITE 394
City ‘ ’City B
NEWBURGH . HARRISON
State ZIP + 4 Cdde : " slate ZIP + 4 Code
NY NY 1028 |
¢. Audilee coniact ¢. Primary auditor conlact
Name Name

CHERYL GROSS D%ENICK CONSOLO

itle
PARTHNER

Title
CITY COMPTROLLER

d. Auditee conlact telephone

d. <P{'oﬁary auditor contact telephone
 (8as )} 569 — 7362 914 ) 38M— 8900
e. Auditee contact FAX

. P}Wdﬁoytact FAX
() - AN ap i
f. Auditee contact E-mail f. Py ZWT S?%Smalf
CGROSS@CITYOFNEWBURGH-NY.COV CNSOLE@oDMLoM
g. AUDITEE CERTIFICATION STATEMENT - Thisis d. DITOR'STAT

lo cerlify thal, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the Hcludeghn this
auditee has: (1) engaged an audilor lo perform an audit i

ifnited fo those prescribed by OMB
r A-133/ The infdrmatiof included in Parts |l and I} of the

in accordance with the provisions of OMB Circular A-133 forwf, excep¥for Parkill, ltemy/7,

for the period described in Part |, Hems 1 and 3; (2) the from the aliditor'sreport(s) fg

auditor has compleled such audit and presented a signed 1 and 3 is/hot a substituté for such repers. The auditor
audit reporl which slates that the audit was conducted in has not p ed any augiting grocedures.s date of the
accordance with the provisions of the Circular; and, (3) auditor's report{s). A copy of th¢ reportie

the information included in Parts I, IE, and Il of ihis OMB Circular A-133, which ingluds

dala collection {form is accurate and complete. 1 declare report(s), is available iy ils endi

that the foregoing is true and correct. provided in Part | of th

package. The auditor has not performead a

Auditee certification Date pracedures in connection with the comp .
: ' : A A <]
ELECTRONICALLY CERTIFIED 9/2912011 7a, Add Secondary auditor information? {Optional)
Name of certifying official 1ldves 2XINo
b. I "Yes,” complete Part 1, Item B on thy, contihyation
CHERYL A GROSS : : sheet on page 5.
Titie of cerlifying official Auditor ceriification’ ‘ ate

KCOMPTROLLER ELECTRONICALLY CERTIFIED 9/2772011 /




Primary EIN:

INTERNET REPORT ID: 413320 VERSION: 1 114|771 6]0j0j2312 9
PART 11 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (To be completed by auditor) \
1. Type of audit report
Mark either: 1 L1 Unqualified opinfon OR
any combination of: 2 iX] Qualified opinion 3 [_} Adverse opinion 4 [[] Disclaimer of apinion
2. [s a "going concern” explanatory paragraph included in the audit reponi? 1lives 2(XINo
3. Is a significant deficiency disclosed? 1dves 2[XiNo
4. Is a materal weakness disclosed? 1 1yes 2[XINo
5. lsa materiai/nmoce disclosed? 1Ll Yes 2XINo
PARTTIl | FEDEAAL PROGRAMS (To be completed by auditor)
. Dosgs thesguditgh's report include a statement that the auditee’s financial
entsNpgfude deparimenis, agencies, or other organizational units
expanting $500,000 or mors inFedexal awards that have separale A-133
audits whigh are ndt included this aud{l? (AICPA Audit Guide, Chapter 13) 1l ves z[XINo
2. Whal is {be dolldr threshktid to tmgu A and Type B programs? $ 300,000
{OMEB Cifgular A-133 : !
3. Did the audﬂee@nf@wnsk au :Eee’?g .530) 1 ves 2XINo
4. Is a significant deficiency dts#sed);mw 510(@)(1)) illlyes z2[XiNo
5. ls a malerial weakness dlscté@d %)r an Aor rogram'? \O(a)(?)) i{Yes 2XiNo
6. Are any known questioned costs reportgd? (( 510(a)(3) or AN illyes 2[(XINo
7. Waere Prior Audil Findings related to dir wi in the Syrimary Bchedule of
Prior Audit Findings? (§__ .315(b)) 1+ 1¥as 2XINo

8. Indicate which Federal agency(ies) have current year audll i
in the Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings related fg

8 .1 U.S. Agency for nter- so ] Generat Senvices$Adming
national Development a3 ] Health and Human

0 Agriculture 97 1] Homeland Security

231 Appafachian Regional 14 L] Housing and Urban
Commission Development

11 LI Commerce 03[ 1 Institute of Museum and

94 [_] Corporation for National Library Services
and Community Sarvice 157 tnlerior

12[[] Defense i6 L1 Justice

84 [ ] Education 170 Labor

81 F_J Energy o3 [] Legal Services Corporation

o8 ] Environmental 43 L] National Aeronautics and
Protection Agency Space Administration

nding or prior audit findings shown

191 U.S. Depariment
of Slate

20[_] Transporiation
21 L] Treasury

4 {3 Veterans Affairs
o0 X None

[l Other — Specify:

_/

Page 2
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O’Connor Davies Munns & Dobbins, llp

ACCOUNTANTS AND COMNSULTANTS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Newburgh, New York:

Compliance

We have audited the City of Newburgh, New York's (“City”) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
the City's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2010. The City's major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the
responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Frofit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City 's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our
audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control
over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
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internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A maferial weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on atimely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the basic financial statements of the City of Newburgh, New York as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2010 and have issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2011
which contained qualified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the
purpose of forming our opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City's
basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Councif, management, federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

&l ommar Davso Vm ¢ Dobbuno, AhP

O'Connor Davies Munns & Dobbins, LLP
Harrison, New York
September 26, 2011




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ending December 31, 2010

Federal Grantor
Program Title

U.S. Department of Transportation

Indirect Program - Passed
through New York State
Department of Transportation -

Highway Planning and Construction Grants (ARRA)
Highway Planning and Construction Grants

State and Community Highway Safety Grants
Occupant Protection Incentive Grants
Total U.S. Department of Transportation

U.S. Department of Justice

indirect Program - Passed
through New York State
Bepartment of Justice -

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance
Grant Program

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance
Grant Program (ARRA)

Public Safety Patnership and Community
Policing Grants (ARRA)

Project Safe Neighborhoods Grants
PSN Anti-Gang Initiative Grant
Total U.S. Department of Justice

U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development

Direct Programs:

Community Development
Block Grant
Block Grant (ARRA}

Economic Development Initiative-Special Project, Neighborhood

Initiative and Miscellaneous Grants
Total U.S. of Housing and Urban Development

U.S, Department of Education

Indirect Program - Passed
through New York State
Department of Education -

Twenty-First Century Community
Learning Centers

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Direct Programs:

Assistance to Firefighters Grant

Federal
CFDA Non-

Number (1) ARRA (2) ARRA Expenditures
20.205 $ 3,702,498 $ 3,702,498
20.206 240,882 240,882
20.600 18,465 18,465
20.602 6,090 6,080

3,967,935

16.738 113,100 113,100
16.804 124,145 124,145
18.710 315,686 315,686
16.609 33,632 33,632
16.744 1,368 1,368
587,931

14.218 417,741 417,741
14.253 64,010 64,010
14.251 32,150 32,150
513,901

84.287 711,812 711,812
97.044 52,763 52,763




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS {Continued)
Year Ending December 31, 2010

Federal
Federal Grantor CFDA
Program Title Number {1}

Non-
ARRA (2} ARRA Expenditures

U.S, Depariment of Health and Human Services

Indirect Program - Passed
through Catholic Charities
Community Services of
Orange County -

Drug-Free Communities Support Program Grants 93.276

 Total

(1} Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance number.
{2) American Reinvestment and Recovery Act

12,059 12,059

$

1,640,062 § 4,206,339 $ 5,846,401




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. General
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents all activity of
all Federal awards programs for the year ended December 31, 2010. Federal awards
received directly from Federal agencies as well as Federal awards passed through other
government agencies are included on the Schedule.

2 Basis of Accounting

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federai Awards is presented using the
modified accrual basis of accounting.

3. Refationship to Financial Statements

The fund financial statements are presented using the modified accrual basis of
accounting.




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Finding 09-01: Twenty-First Century Learning Center - Reporting

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development CFDA 84.287 Twenty-
First Century Learning Centers

Condition: Per auditor's review, it was noted that the City did not file their FS-10-F for one of
the 2008-2009 grants.

Current Status: The City believes it is now current in filing all required reports.




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Section I-Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Qualified

internal control over financial reporting:
+ Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X_No
« Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are

not considered to be material

weaknesses? Yes X__ None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements

noted? Yes X _No
Federal Awards
internal Control over major programs:
» Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
» Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)? Yes X_None reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance with
Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-1337 Yes X No

identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s)

14.218
14.253
16.710
16.738
16.804

20.205
84.287

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Community Development Block Grant — Entitlement Grants
Cluster

Community Development Block Grant — Entitlement Grants
Cluster ARRA

Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program
(ARRA)

Highway Planning and Construction Cluster

Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers




CITY OF NEWBURGH, NEW YORK

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Concluded)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Doliar threshoid used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs: $300.,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X _No
Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

None

Section il - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None




O’Connor Davies Munns & Dobbins, llp

ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
of the City of Newburgh, New York:

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Newburgh, New York as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2010, which collectively comprise the City of Newburgh, New York's
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2011. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Newburgh, New York's internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Newburgh, New York's internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of
Newburgh, New York's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Newburgh, New York's
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

We noted certain matters that we reported to the management of the City of Newburgh, New
York in a separate letter.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, management and
Federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public
record and its distribution is not limited.

& lorumprs Daisiio Vmw g Doéb/hw/ LhP

O'Connor Davies Munns & Dobbins, LLP
June 24, 2011




